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June 92011

SEC Headquarters Corporate Governance

100 Street NE

Washington D.C 20549

Re Proxy Materials

To Whom It May Concern

In the enclosed package please find the required eight definitive copies of our proxy

materials including

Proxy Statement

Proxy Card

Notice and Access Notification

Annual Report and

Form 10-K

These materials will be made available to our shareholders on June 10 2011 via mail and

our website Please let us know if you have any questions or concerns

Sincerely

Kenneth Dillard

Manager of Financial Reporting

864-967-9324

kdillard@avxus.com

AVX Corporation

By



If you had asked people in our industry at that time what

tomorrow three decades later would bring answers would have

varied widely Few would have been correct This report looks at the

many ways AVX is delivering what our customers need today while

looking beyond the horizon to imagine and create the products

theyll need to control the power of tomorrow

It will take the vision skill and experience exemplified by

AVX to develop true passive and interconnect foundation for

technologies that will enable tomorrows designers to create

products that exist only in todays imagination Now 10 years

into the 21st century we are seeing exponential increases in

complexity of the world in which we live and the electronics

needed to power it

Today AVX offers the widest selection of Multilayer Ceramic

Capacitors MLCC in the industry with total product catalog

encompassing tens of thousands of unique products

AVX MLCC arrays are improving system performance while

reducing circuit size and cost The arrays shrink circuit footprints

and improve reliability while improving control of Electro-Magnetic

Interference EMI and overall

manufacturing speed

Capacitor Arrays have further

evolved into integrated filters

which control both inductance and

capacitance standard FeedThru

Filter value range exists allowing

_____ broadband
filtering

of EMI noise

using 80% less board area Common applications for Capacitor

Arrays and FeedThru Filters include displays PDNnotebooks

and hand-held electronics

Ten years ago our customers and we in turn were

struggling with the goal of miniaturization packaging as much

power and control in the smallest possible space shrinking cell

phones reducing the size of TV electronics and minimizing the size

of medical devices for easier implantation As AVX engineers

worked tirelessly to create smaller packages to control the

power of tomorrows smaller devices they had already

started to think in different direction integration

Were now seeing the results of bundling more powe

increased capability and more functions into one package Phones

are now computers TV5 and game consoles TV5 are high definition

flat screens with two or more HDMI connections each HDMI cable

carrying eight high speed data lines requiring control and filtering

In addition the rush of tablet computers and handhelds into the

market place each bringing its own set of apps has led to

data frenzy demanding increasingly faster electronics and

ever-increasing electronic storage

AVX Advanced Products address the drive to miniaturize and

integrate by combining multiple functions into one component or

in finding new ways to control the power driving our lives Today

Advanced Products are among AVXs biggest sellers

Many AVX products didnt even exist 30 years ago because

the products and technologies they help manage didnt exist

AVX built its position at the top of its industry by delivering whats

essential for customers today while listening carefully about what

they envision for the future

Our engineers engage in constant dialog with our customers

to chart their future direction

What kinds of power will customers need to control

How will they try to harness power from the sun or wind

How will they want to transform it store it and transmit it

Will they need to protect their power sources or data streams

from the proliferation of other power and RF signals

Each customer scenario enables us to develop leading

edge products or propose unique combinations of our

technologies that will result in the launch of

novel solutions for tomorrows

dream products

More than 30 years ago major business publication applauded AVX for its sirategic foresight in understanding

the market anticipating essential customer needs and delivering reliable cost-effective products The article

proclaimed AVX the worlds indisputable leading capacitor manufacturer Back then AVXs main product was

multilayer ceramic capacitor Almost all sales were domestic and the Asia sales office was barely six months old



Results Summary

AVX sales for the year increased to $1.7 billion with net

income of $244 million or 15% of sales From both sales and

earnings standpoint our year was strong as the global economy

continued to show steady growth that started half way through

the prior year

Our gross profit margins increased continually during the

year reflecting our focus on value-added products with higher

margins and good operating leverage on increased sales The

cost reduction actions completed in the 2009 and 2010 fiscal

years provided lower cost basis that paid off well in 2011

Late in this fiscal year our stock hit two-year high Plus

our Board increased shareholder return by raising the quarterly

dividend by 220o to an annual rate of 22 cents per common

share

Anticipating Change Ahead of the Curve

If we are to secure the long-term success of AVX we must

look beyond the immediate horizon We must continue to

manufacture products for todays customers needs in timely

cost-effective manner but also must look ahead to tomorrow We

must be ready for our customers needs as electronics and

components move at an expanding rate

We as company must focus on Controlling the Power of

Tomorrow It is this forward-looking customer focus that has

repeatedly helped AVX weather economic downturns while

growing profitably

AVX moved ahead of the curve when the economy started to

slow several years ago and we set about adjusting overhead and

reducing manufacturing costs leaving AVX positioned to take

advantage of opportunities as the economy recovered

We kept our global manufacturing plants operating during

the downturn using the time to expand manufacturing

capabilities of our facilities for additional products Our

manufacturing capabilities are now more flexible and more

consolidated across the world Our plants can now produce

wider range of products adapting quickly to the needs of the

market and our customers We must continue with this effort and

push the pace of AVX product innovation AVX tripled its new

product rollout this year compared to the previous year Yet in the

future this will not be sufficient

Market Overview/Trends

Simply stated This year has been good across all markets

for AVX

During the downturn many customers reduced inventory

then spent this year replenishing their stocks as the economy

improved We were quick to respond to the needs of our

recovering customers Advanced Products rebounded strongly

especially with regard to Power film products Strength in this



area is also due to global expansion in renewable energy sources

and energy harvesting

We are optimistic about developments in the Automotive

segment AVX is adding capacity to serve this expanding market

particularly for Interconnect Products New Hybrid or Electrical

Drive vehicles need additional products associated with powering

the vehicles as well as controlling multiple levels of voltages and

increasing power conversion efficiency As the momentum

grows our focus on this market grows as well

We see pick up in Commercial Avionics electronics due

to expanding electronic applications in each aircraft and

increased production of aircraft

In Mobile Communications smartphones will continue to

gain share of all cell phones Smartphones will consume more

AVX components as they continue to increase functionality such

as acting as WiFi hot spot and incorporating touch screens The

trend to 3G and 4G connectivity has spurred new applications to

provide seamless coverage switching between various

frequency bands and improving high-speed data throughput

Worldwide Tablet shipments are expected to triple to 60

million units in the calendar year 2011 These popular devices

need more AVX components due to extended battery life

enhanced screen capabilities and additional power filtering

Additionally device sellers continue to introduce new products in

this rapidly growing market

Television screens are evolving from plasma and LCD to

LED and 3D User interlace will become main consumer priority

going forward replacing picture quality as the main television

selling point Interactive media such as the Internet and gaming

will increase the need for more powerful AVX RE and Digital

electronic devices with each new TV Rising global demand led

by developing nations is expected to increase overall unit

volumes for AVX

Inventories/Raw Material

Production utilization in our Tantalum component business

remained high throughout the year near maximum output

AVX gained market share in this valuable product line and will

continue to gain market share due to new customers and the

investments we have made in material to support the product

line as the availability of this material became concern for the

industry

Taking look at operations our inventories particularly our

investment in Raw Materials increased by $139.4 million during

the year Our exceptional financial balance sheet strength has

allowed us to make investments in critical resources to ensure

adequate production material availability

Summary

Our strategic vision is clear our order books are strong and

our financial position is solid with $1 billion in Cash and

Investment Securities and no debt

At AVX we look forward to another year of successfully

meeting our customers current demands while searching for

better ways to control tomorrows power -- no matter what form

it takes We will face challenges such as weaker dollar along

with higher metal and other material costs which will put some

pressure on margins However our financial strength and

proactive strategy will help us meet these challenges

We look forward to our shareholders joining us for the

annual meeting scheduled for 1000 a.m EST July 20 2011 in

Greenville South Carolina

automotive supplle namedAVX its 2009 Plastic-Mechatronics Supplier of the Year

assistance systems and sensors to instrumentation and infotainment solutions Announcing

ri quality customer service and commercial competitiveness AVX Vice President of Sales Pete

leading supplier of passive electronic technology solutions this award clearly demonstrates

yn interconnect and mechatronic product technologies

John Gilbertson

Chief Executive Officer and President

AVX Corporation



There is no better

controlling the

As the motorized vehicle evolved from largely mechanical

entity to one where electronics comprise the majority of the

content AVX parts increased in importance to play key role

in todays cars trucks and buses

Thirty years ago air conditioning and cruise control were

found only in upscale models EMI in vehicles was not

considered big problem Now virtually every model comes

equipped with NC and cruise control not to mention an array of

other electronically controlled embellishments Refinements

and improvements continue

in the old cruise control

Some higher-end models are

now equipped with adaptive

cruise control Once driver

sets the speed his car

monitors traffic in front of

him If the leading car slows

the electronics sense it and

slows the drivers car When

traffic speed picks up the

cruise control slowly resumes

the selected speed without any driver interaction

Today even some entry-level car models come equipped

with GPS and hands free systems With the shift in global auto

purchasing where Chinas market is outgrowing the U.S

domestic market AVXs worldwide reach becomes paramount

Many purchases in these new markets will be lower entry-level

models yet will require considerable electronic content in body

control modules communications and sensor circuits

The need to control power connect systems and

shield from EMI will continue to grow due to

increased demand for cars and proliferating

electronic content By 2015 every U.S car will

be required to have backup-assist system

Another example An internet-connected

rearview mirror system for emergency

communications is being expanded

from one automaker and will

become available for any model car up to 10 years old This

development opens up new market of 55 million cars

Increasingly cars are talking to other electronic devices

downloadable mobile app connects smartphone to your

car enabling remote start and other in-car applications

ED

TransGuard protects against

transient voltages while

filtering
EMI from outside and

inside the car



As the world becomes more energy conscious entirely

new systems for automotive propulsion are appearing

The Hybrid Electric

Vehicle HE\O is replacing

the traditional internal

combustion engine ICE

with electric drive trains

that can assist the engine

Totally Electric Vehicles

EV5 are appearing Current EV5 are primarily targeted for shod

haul journeys The growing infrastructure of charging stations

being planned throughout the country will quickly extend EVs

range Both power methods significantly cut emissions and

reduce dependence on fossil fuel

Our customers presented AVX with

world of different opportunities that

required custom solutions to meet the

challenge of controlling power in

tomorrows Electric Vehicles For

example currently pads are designed to

function up to 150C for under-hood

applications but AVX is working on even

higher temperature ratings for use in

power inverter electronics for Hybrids

and EV drivetrains

AVX is currently collaborating with

vehicle manufacturers on Hybrid and EV

systems that will roll out to the

marketplace as soon as 2013 and beyond

tomorrow may come sooner than you

think when not only family cars are EV5

but also school buses package delivery

trucks and some of the worlds largest

retailers delivery fleets will be totally electric

Even today in many metropolitan areas hybrid bus fleets

are the norm Transmission systems whose reliability depends

on AVX power capacitors rack up many millions of fleet hours

In addition to major auto manufacturers AVX is working with all

leading suppliers of electrical systems from in-car

entertainment to EV charging infrastructure to usher in new

age of electric propulsion

Developing tomorrows EV is reminiscent of the early

horseless carriage era world of ideas is explored each taking

unique approach Vehicle design varies Every new engine

compartment is different

Added to the spectrum of designs auto engineers and their

AVX counterparts also see the need for decreasing time-to-market

Engineers need to explore new design concepts in real time as

systems constantly evolve AVX

speeds the engineering process

with mechanical 3D CAD designs

and electronic software

simulation programs Vehicle

engineers can consider tar more

possibilities over wider range

of programs than ever before

They can drop in virtual parts

to virtual engine blocks and test

ideas before anything is turned into metal or plastic

AVXcom



Introducing low noise high capacitance MLCC designed specifically for audio frequency applications

AVX expanded its already broad family of multilayer ceramic capacitors to unveil the new OM Series It significantly reduces

noise characteristics while providing high capacitance with low working voltage These characteristics make it ideal for

mobile phone hard disk drive and LCD panel driver circuit applications In addition the QLLM Sedes is weil suited for use as

low pass filter for audio ampilfier output or as coupilng capacitor

Controlling the Power for

Tomorrows Smartphones

Todays smartphones are

miniature computers containing

ultra-fast GHz processors for

multitasking and beffer video

performance They can shoot

high definition video or

participate in videoconference

They take photos send email

communicate through social

media read bar code pay bill electronically keep

calendar synced with other devices and provide music or

ebooks for pleasure These phones can function on several

different frequency bands enabling the phones to work on

different networks and in different parts of the world

AVX is in the middle of all this with its Accu-P thin-f ilm

capacitor technology With Accu-Ps

enhanced RE handling capability

ultra-small sizes availability and

tight capacitance tolerances smartphone makers can use

capacitors to fine tune antennas or change the antenna

bandwidth electronically Phones can be both smaller and have

befter antennas

Controlling Tomorrows Power of Finding Your Way

Smartphones are just one of many multi function consumer

devices One technology consultant predicts that by the end of

this year 75% of these smartphones cars

handheld devices and even watches will

include GPS offering directions and

landmark identification

Work is already underway on

tomorrows GPS-lll system supported

by whole new generation of satellites

AVX will play role in controlling the

power for ground and space components

of this high resolution positioning

satellite system To meet the processing

speed required for this space system

AVX employed BestCap supercapacitor

with its unique proton polymer

membrane

Exceptional Sales Performance

Award Goes to AVX

Digi -Key one of the fastest growing

electronic component distdbutors in

the world tappedA VX for its 2010

Exceptional Sales Performance

Award thanks to increased sales and

exemplary business interactions

AVX Vice President of Sales Pete Venuto

noted that the honor demonstrates

AVXs dedication to our customers and

specificaily our distdbution partner of

more than eight years





AVX expertise and innovations1t

more energy-efficient light a..

capabilities to the world

Controlling Power

for Tomorrows Defense

There are few market sectors

where cuffing-edge performance

reliability
size and power

consumption intersect in importance

as in Defense Electronics

For example tomorrows

training simulators will use so-called

synthetic instruments The

concept involves using screens to

emulate standard rack mount

AVX.com

instruments but in programmable

configuration The modules are designed

to be usable in different measurement

scenarios increasing the units flexibility

and lifespan

To succeed these and other more

complex systems must exhibit higher

functionality improved operational

readiness across many scenarios with

small size and ideally improved power

consumption characteristics

Modular sub-system design

approaches are used to meet these goals

LED The Power of Tomorrows Light

AVX parts are working to connect and control the energy-

efficient and increasingly popular Light Emitting Diodes LED5

Small yet powerful LED5 are

predicted to save 70% in

cost over their life compared

to existing lightbulb

technology LED5 have been

around for years but only

recently have significant

advances in light output

made LED5 economical to

produce and operate The latter part of 2011 will see the

largest commercialization of new solid state lighting fixtures

based on the new High-Bright HB LED5

Many of todays flat-screen TV5 are using LED5 rather than

fluorescent CCFL for so-called backlighting Benefits include

thinner panels reduced energy consumption better contrast

and more brightness greater color range quicker response to

changes in scene and more accurate image rendering

AVX parts are used to control the power for the highly complex

output needed for these TV5 with

sales of nearly 80 million worldwide

last year



using programmable

configurable and

redundant circuitry These

design and system trends

naturally lend themselves

to AVX products that offer

both power and signal

solutions to satisfy complex design requirements

Several examples of AVX products put to use by engineers

and designers in this area

CapGuard and integrated functionality components provide

Transient Voltage suppression and broadband EMC filtering in

single miniature package CapGuards can save the designer

more than 50% of the

board area compared to

the closest competing

solution

TurboCap Switch

Mode Power Supply

Capacitors allow power

conversion to occur more efficiently in smaller lighter packages

that are capable of producing higher quality power outlet

High-power low-loss RF capacitors and couplers allow

Transceivers and RF control electronics to efficiently utilize

power and transmit signals over small portion of the RF

spectrum utilizing frequency bands more efficiently

AVX1com





Jeadership 30 years ago role that

New Connection for Tomorrows Power

Sometimes the simplest things take the longest to change

Take the act of permanently connecting wire to board

Crimping soldering or using

screw are the traditional

options used since

experiments with electricity

began in the 1700s

AVX is changing all that

with the Poke Home Wire-to-

Board connector 9276 Series Some 70%-80% of todays

products have discrete wires that need to be connected Using the

Poke Home Wire-to-Board Connector all an installer needs is

wire stripper Just strip the coating and insert the exposed wire

into the connector The connector is highly versatile accepting solid

and stranded wires ranging from 10 to 24 gauge high force

beryllium-copper spring holds the wire securely in place The

connection is fast and strong

This AVX connector breakthrough serves industrial and

consumer markets from electronic/computer component

assembly to industrial controls and Solid State Lighting SSL

Eventually the AVX Wire-Board Poke Home connector will

be widely available from wholesale suppliers and consumer

hardware stores

Soon to reach the market is the AVX Wire-to-Wire Poke

Home connector Using the same simple approach as the Wire-

to-Board Connector Wire-to-Wire enables fast strong connection

between wires Push buffon activation makes inserting the

wire easy while the high force beryllium-copper spring

offers connection reliability and strain relief

The Wire-to-Wire Poke Home will be available

for the traditional 11 wire connection as well as

branching or shorting versions to connect one

lead to several wires

Engineering Breakthroughs for Tomorrow

From complex multi-functional solutions that help link

GPS satellites with smartphones to befter method of wire

connection AVX serves todays

needs while preparing for

controlling tomorrows

If you want realistic

picture of what our future

might look like dont talk to one of

the so-called futurists Its beffer to listen to our sales engineers

because they are talking with customers about their vision of the

future Meet our design engineers because they are seeking

solutions and refinements that may not appear in products for

halt decade or more It is in our conversations with customers

and in our labs that the plans for controlling tomorrows power

are born The
ability

to see the future

powered AVX to industry leadership

30 years ago role that we

continue to hold today

and will tomorrow

AVXcom ED
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Kyocera Group Company

01 Sun Valley California

02 Colorado Springs Colorado

03 Juarez Mexico

04 San Salvador El Salvador

05 OleanNewYork

06 Huntington Station New York

07 Biddetord Maine

08 Conway South Carolina

09 Myrtle Beach South Carolina

10 Jacksonville Florida

11 Coleraine Northern Ireland

12 Saint Apollinaire France

13 Betzdorl Germany

14 Lanskroun Czech Republic

15 Uherske Hradiste Czech Republic

16 Jerusalem Israel

17 Penang Malaysia

18 Tianjin China

AVX Sales Channels OEM 49% Distribution 40% EMS 11%

Customer Segments

Telecom 15%

Industrial 15%

Automotive 15%

Wireless 14%

Computers 13%

Consumer 11%

Efi Medical 6%

Networking 6%

Defenses%

Product Categories

Passive Components 63%

Advanced Products 25%

Tantalum 25%

Ceramics 13%

Kyocera Resale 27%

AVX and KEC Resale Connectors 10%

John Gilbertson4

Chairman of the Board AVX Corporation

Kazuo lnamori4

Chairman Emeritus of the Board

Kyocera Corporation

Donald Christiansen15

Retired

David DeCenzo1

President Coastal Carolina University

Kensuke Itoh234

Kyocera Corporation

Makoto Kawamura234

Kyocera Corporation

Tetsuo Kuba234

Kyocera Corporation

Rodney Lanthorne4

Kyocera Corporation

Tatsumi Maeda

Kyocera Corporation

Joseph Stach1 235

Retired

Board of Directors

AVX.com



Corporate Officers

John Gilbertson

Chief Executive Officer and President

Marshall Jackson

Executive Vice President of Sales

and Marketing

Peter Venuto

Vice President of Sales

Carl Eggerding

Vice President Chief Technology Officer

Kurt Cummings

Vice President Chief Financial Officer

Treasurer and Secretary

Keith Thomas

Vice President President of Kyocera

Electronic Devices

Peter Collis

Vice President of Tantalum Products

John Sarvis

Vice President of Ceramic Products

John Lawing

Vice President of Advanced Products

Kathleen Kelly

Vice President of Human Resources

Stock Exchange

AVXs common stock is traded on

the New York Stock Exchange

symbol AVX

Stock Transfer Agent and Registrar

The American Stock Transfer and

Trust Company

-800-937-5449 Shareholders Services

www.amstock.com

Written shareholder correspondence

and requests for transfers should be sent to

The American Stock Transfer and

Trust Company

59 Maiden Lane Plaza Level

New York New York 10038

Audit Committee

Compensation Comm ittee

Equity Compensation Committee

Executive Committee

Special Advisory Committee

Investor Questions

Investment questions from security

analysts portfolio managers and

shareholders about AVX and requests

for copy of AVXs Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended

March 31 2011 filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission

should be directed to

Investor Relations

AVX Corporation

AVX Boulevard

Fountain Inn South Carolina 29644

Telephone 864 967-2150

FAX 843 916-7751

www.avx.com

Independent Registered

Public Accounting Firm

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

10 Tenth Street Suite 1400

Atlanta Georgia 30309-3851

AVXcom
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contained to the best of registrants knowledge in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this

Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10 IC
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reporting company See the definitions of large accelerated filer accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 2b-2

of the Exchange Act
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accelerated filer Do not check if smaller reporting company Smaller reporting company
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is shell company as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act Yes No
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The
following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements including the notes

thereto appearing elsewhere herein Statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K that reflect
projections or expectations

of future

financial or economic performance of AVX Corporation and statements of the Companys plans and objectives for future operations

including those contained in Business Risk Factors Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations and Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk or relating to the Companys outlook for fiscal 2012
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.differences in addition to the other factors noted with such forward looking statements and in Risk Factors in this Annual Report on
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factors that generally affect the business of manufacturing and supplying electronic components and related products AVX Corporation

does not undertake to update or revise any forward-looking statement contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K to reflect new

events or circumstances unless and to the extent required by applicable law
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PART

Item Business

General

AVX Corporation together with its consolidated subsidiaries AVX or the Company is leading worldwide manufacturer and

supplier of broad line of passive electronic components and related products Virtually all types of electronic devices use our passive

component products to store filter or regulate electric energy

Our passive electronic component products include ceramic and tantalum capacitors film capacitors varistors filters and other

components manufactured in our facilities throughout the world and
passive components manufactured by Kyocera Corporation of

Japan Kyocera public company and our majority stockholder which owns approximately 72% of our outstanding common stock

We also manufacture and sell electronic connectors and inter connect systems
and distribute and sell certain electronic connectors

manufactured by Kyocera

We are organized by product line with five main product groups Our reportable segments are based on the types of products from

which we generate revenues We have three reportable segments Passive Components Kyocera Electronic Devices KED Resale

and Interconnect The product groups of Ceramic Components Advanced Components and Tantalum Components have been

aggregated into the Passive Component reportable segment Segment revenue and profit information is presented in Note 14 to the

consolidated financial statements The Passive Components segment consists primarily of surface mount and leaded ceramic capacitors

RF thick and thin film components tantalum capacitors film capacitors ceramic and film power capacitors super capacitors EMI filters

thick and thin film packages vatistors thermistors inductors and resistive products The KED Resale segment consists primarily of

ceramic capacitors frequency control devices SAW devices sensor products RF modules actuators acoustic devices and connectors

produced by Kyocera and resold by AVX The Interconnect segment consists primarily of AVX Interconnect formerly Elco

automotive telecom and memory connectors manufactured by AVX In addition we have
corporate

administration group consisting

of finance and administrative activities and
separate research and development group

Our customers are multi-national otiginal equipment manufacturers or OEMs independent electronic component disttibutors and

electronic manufactuting service providers or EMSs We market our products through our own direct sales force and independent

manufacturers representatives based upon market charactetistics and demands We coordinate our sales marketing and manufacruting

organizations by strategic customer account and globally by region

We sell our products to customers in broad array of industries such as telecommunications information technology hardware

automotive electronics medical devices and instrumentation industrial instrumentation defense and
aerospace

electronic
systems

and

consumer electronics

Our principal strategic advantages include

Creating Technology Leadershp We have research and development locations in the United States United Kingdom Czech Republic

France and Israel We developed numerous new products and product extensions duting fiscal 2011 and won several awards that

recognize our technology leadership These new products add to the broad product line we offer to our customers Due to our broad

product offering none of our products individually represent
material portion of our revenues Our scientists are working to develop

product solutions to the
challenges facing our customers as consumers and business demand more advanced electronic solutions to

manage their everyday lives and businesses Our engineers are continually working to enhance our manufacturing processes to improve

capability capacity and yield while continning to reduce manufactuting costs

Providing Broad Product Line We believe that the breadth and quality of our product line and our ability to quickly respond to our

customers design and delivery reqnirements make us the provider of choice for our multi national customer base We differentiate

ourselves by providing our customers with substantially complete passive component solution We market five families of products

ceramic products tantalum products advanced products Kyocera manufactured passive products and connector devices This broad

array
allows our customers to streamline their purchasing and

supply organization



Maintaining the Lowest Cost Hzghestualiy Manufacturing Organization We have invested approximately $101 million over the past

rhree fiscal years to upgrade and enhance our worldwide manufacturing capabilities with respect to the manufacture of ceramic tantalum

and advanced components as well as connector devices In order to continually reduce the cost of production our strategy
has included

the transfer to and expansion of manufacturing operations in countries such as China El Salvador Malaysia Mexico and the Czech

Republic

Global/y Coordinating our Marketing Distribution and Manufacturing Facilities We believe that our global presence is an important

competitive advantage as it allows us to provide quality products on timely basis to our multi-national customers We provide enhanced

services and responsiveness to our customers by maintaining significant manufacturing operations in locations where we market the

majority of our products Our 19 manufacturing facilities are located in 10 different countries around the world As our customers

continue to expand their global production capabilities we are ideally situated to meet their design and supply requirements

Products

We offer an extensive line .of passive components designed to provide our customers with one stop shopping for substantially all

of their passive component needs Passive components do not require power to operate These components adjust and regulate voltage

and current store energy and filter frequencies Sales of Passive Components represented approximately 63fl/0 of our uct sales in fiscal

2011 KDP and KKC Resale represented approximately 27% and Connectors including KEC Resale Connectors represented

approximately
10% of our net sales in fiscal 2011 The table below

presents revenues for fiscal 2009 2010 and 2011 by product group

Financial information concerning our Passive Components KED Resale Interconnect and Research and Development segments is set

forth in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements elsewhere herein

Years Ended March 31
Sales revenue in thousands 2009 2010 2011

.cani l2.7i

p221
Advanced Components 434039 369811 410110

Total Passive Components 868105 805861 1041900

KIDP and KKC Resale 354258 338701 440050

KEC Resale Connectors 76209 73973 66088

TotaIKED Resale 430467 412674 506138

Interconnect 91041 86431 105138

Total Revenue 1389613 1304966 1653176

Passive Components

We manufacture full line of multi layered ceramic and solid tantalum capacitors in many different sizes and configurations Our

strategic focus on the growing use of passive components is reflected in our investment of approximately $91.2 million in facilities and

equipment used to manufacture passive components during the
past

three fiscal
years

We believe that sales of passive components will

continue to be among the most rapidly growing in the worldwide capacitor market because technological advances have been eonstantiy

expanding the number and
type

of applications for these products

Tantalum and ceramic capacitors are commonly used in conjunction with integrated circuits and are best suited for applications

requiring low to medium capacitance values
Capacitance is the measure of the capacitors ability to store electric energy Generally

ceramic capacitors are more cost-effective at lower capacitance values and tantalum capacitors are more cost-effective at medium

capacitance
values The net sales of tantalum and ceramic capacitors accounted for approximately

61% of our passive component net

sales in fiscal 2011

We also offer line of advanced passive component products to fill the special needs of our customers Our family of passive

components also includes film
capacitors high energy/voltage power capacitors

and varistors Our advanced
products engineers work

with some customers in-house technical staffs to design produce and manufacture customized products to meet the specifications of

particular applications
The manufacture of custom products permits us through our research and development activities to make

technological advances provide customers with design solutions to fit their needs galn marketing inroad with the customer with respect

to our complete product line and in some eases develop products that can be sold to additional customers in the future Sales of

advanced products accounted for approximately 39% of passive component net sales in fiscal 2011
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ICED Resale

We have non exclusive license to distribute and sell certain Kyocera manufactured electronic component and connector products to

certain customers and in certain territories outside ofJapan Our distribution and sale of certain Kyocera products broadens our range of

products and further facilitates our ability to offer one-stop shopping for our customers electronic components needs The Kyocera

KDP and 11CC electronic components we sell include ceramic capacitors RF modules frequency control devices SAW devices sensor

products actuators and acoustic devices Resale product sales also include connectors manufactured by Kyocera Sales of these products

accounted for approximately 39% of net sales in fiscal 2011

Interconnect

We manufacture and seli high quality electronic connectors and inter connect systems for use in the telecommunications information

technology hardware automotive electronics medical device defense and
aerospace

industries Our product lines include variety of

industry standard connectors as well as products designed specifically
for our customers unique applications

An expanding portion
of

the electronics market for AVX Interconnect products is the automotive market with applications throughout vehicle including engine

cnntrnl trancmissinn cnntrnl audio brakes and the quickly evnlving ctability and safety contrnl system We produce fine pitch

connectors used in portable devices such as smart phones other celi phones notebook computers GPS and other hand held devices In

addition we offer specialty connectors designed to address customer specific applications across wide range of products and end

markets We have invested approximately $7.5 million in facilities and equipment over the past three years as we continue to focus on

new product development and enhance our production capabilities for our Interconnect business Approximately 39 of combined

manufactured and resale connector net sales in fiscal 2011 consisted of connectors manufactured by Kyocera

Marketing Sales and Distribution

We place high priority on solving customers electronic component design challenges
and responding to their needs To better

sctvc out customers we frequcntiy designate teams consisting of marketing research and development and manufacturing personnel to

work with customers to design and manufacture products to snit their specific requirements Costs related to these activities are expensed

as incurred

Approximately 31% 25% and 44 of our net sales for fiscal 2011 were to our customers in the Americas Europe and Asia

respectively Financial information for these geographic regions is set forth in Note 14 to our consolidated fmancial statements elsewhere

herein discussion of risks associated with our foreign operations can be found in Risk Factors herein

Our products are marketed worldwide by our own dedicated direct sales personnel that serve our major OEM and EMS customers

We also have large network of independent electronic component distributors and independent manufacturers representatives who sell

our products throughout the world We have regional sales and dcsign application pcrsonncl in strategic locations to provide technical

and sales support for independent manufacturers representatives and independent electronic component disttibutors We believe that

this combination of sales channels provides high level of market penetration and efficient coverage of our customers on cost effective

basis

Our products are used in wide variety of applications by numerous customers Our products are sold directly to OEMs EMSs and

through manufactuting representatives
and independent electronic component disttibutors In order to maximize our sales

opportunities

our engineering and sales teams maintain close relationships with OEM EMS and electronic component disttibutor customers Our

largest customers vary from year to year and no customer has long-term commitment to purchase our products No single customer

has accounted for more than 10% of net sales in the fiscal
years

ended March 31 2009 2010 and 2011 Because we are supplier to

several significant manufacturers in the broad based electronic devices industries and because of the cyclical namre of these industries the

significance of any one customer can vary from one petiod to the next

We also have qualified products under vatious specifications approved and monitored by the United States Defense Electronic

Supply Center SCC and European Space Agency ESA and approved under certain foreign military specifications
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Typically independent electronic component distributors handle wide variety of producrs and fill orders for many customers The

sales terms under non-exclusive agreements
with independent electronic component distributors may vary by distributor and by

geographic region In the United States Europe and Asia such agreements may include stock rotation and ship-from stock and debit

ship and debit programs Stock rotation is program whereby distributors are allowed to return for credit quahfied inventory semi

annually equal to certain percentage primarily
limited to 50/s of the previous six months net sales In the United States we may use

ship
and debit program under which pricing adjustments may be granted by us to assist distributors in meeting competitive prices in the

marketplace on sales to their end customers Ship
and debit programs require request

from the distributor for pricing adjustment for

specific part for sale to the distributors end customer from the distributors stock In addition certain
agreements

with distributors

may include special incentive discounts based on amount of product ordered or shipped Our
agreements

with independent electronic

component distributors generally also require that we repurchase qualified inventory from the distributor in the event that we terminate

the distributor agreement or discontinue product offering

We had backlog of orders of approximately $159 million at March 31 2009 $292 million at March 31 2010 and $350 million at

March 31 2011 Firm orders primatily with delivery dates within six months of order placement are included in backlog Many of our

customers encounter uncertain and changing demand for their products Customer provided forecasts of product usage and anticipated

usage
of inventory at consignment locations are not included in backlog If demand falls below customers forecasts or if customers do

not effectively control their inventory they may cancel or reschedule their shipments that ate included in our backlog in many instances

without any penalty Backlog fluctuates from year to year due in part to changes in customer inventory levels changes to consignment

inventory arrangements order patterns and product delivery lead times in the industry Accordingly the backlog outstanding at any time

is not necessarily indicative of the level of business to be expected in any ensuing period since many orders are placed and delivered

within the same period In addition the increased use of vendor managed inventory and similar consignment type arrangements tend to

limit the significance of backlog as orders from these arrangements are not typically reflected in backlog

Research Development and Engineering

Our emphasis on research and development is evidenced by the fact that most of our manufactured products and manufacturing

processes have been designed and developed by our own engineers and scientists We coordinate our research and development activities

from out facility at Headquarters with staff at other facilities located in the United States United Kingdom Czech Republic Israel and

France

Our research and development effort and also operational
level engineering effort place priority on the design and development of

innovative products and manufacturing processes
and engineeting advances in existing product lines and manufacturing operations

Other areas of emphasis include material synthesis and the integration of passive components for applications requiring reduced size and

lower manufacturing costs associated with board assembly Research development and erigineeting expenditures were approximately $31

million $25 million and $24 million during fiscal 2009 2010 and 2011 respectively The level of such spending can fluctuate as new

products are transferred to full scale production and
process

enhancements are implemented

We own United States
patents as well as corresponding patents

in various other countries and also have
patent applications pending

although patents are not in the
aggregate

material to the successful operation of our business For discussion regarding our license

arrangement
with Kyocera see Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Relationship

with Kyocera and Related Transactions

Raw Materials

Although most matetials incorporated in our products are available from number of sources certain materials particularly tantalum

from Australia and China and palladium from Russia and South Africa are available only from relatively limited number of
suppliers

We have informed our suppliers of tantalum materials not to use material sourced from the Democratic Republic of Congo due to

environmental wildlife and humanitatian concerns and to our knowledge we have not used any material from that location

The costs of our products are influenced by wide variety of raw matetials including tantalum and other metals such as platinum

palladium silver nickel gold
and copper used in our manufactuting processes

The cost of these materials is subject to price
fluctuation

and many have risen significantly during the past few years In general increases in the cost of raw matetials may be offset by selling

price increases productivity improvement and cost savings programs but that is not always the case
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We are major consumer of the worlds annual production of tantalum Tantalum powder and wire are principal materials used in

the manufacture of tantalum capacitor products These materials are purchased from suppliers in various parts of the world at prices that

are subject to periodic adjustment and variations in the market The tantalum required to manufacture our products has generally been

available in sufficient quantity The limited number of tantalum material suppliers that process tantalum ore into capacitor grade tantalum

powder has led to higher prices during periods of increased demand

Competition

Markets for our products are highly competitive We encounter aggressive and able competition in our various product lines from

both domestic and foreign manufacturers Competitive factors in the markets include product quality and reliability breadth of product

line customer service technological innovation global production presence timely delivery and price We believe we are competitively

positioned on each of these factors The breadth of our product offering enables us to strengthen our market position by providing

customers with one of the broadest selections of passive electronic components and connector products available from any one source

Our major competitors for passive electronic components are Murata Manufacturing Company Ltd TDK Corporation KEMET
Corporation NEC Corporation Yageo Corporation Taiyo Yuden Co Ltd Samsung Electro Mechanics and Vishay Intertechnology

Inc Our major competitors for certain electronic connector products are Tyco Electronics Amphenol Molex Incorporated FCI and

EriElectronics There are many other companies that produce products in the markets in which we compete

Employees

As of March 31 2011 we employed approximately 11200 full-time employees Approximately 1700 of these employees are

employed in the United States Of the employees located in the United States approximately 400 are covered by collective bargaining

arrangements In addition some foreign employees are members of trade and government-affiliated unions Our relationship with our

employee union groups is generally good However no assurance can be
given that in response to changing economic conditions and

the Companys actions labor unrest or strikes will not occur

Environmental Matters

We are subject to federal state and local laws and regulations concerning the environment in the United States and to the

environmental laws and regulations of the other countties in which we operate These regulations include limitations on discharges into

air and water remediation requirements chemical use and handling restrictions pollution control requirements waste minimization

considerations and hazardous materials
transportation treatment and disposal restrictions If we fail to comply with any of the applicable

environmental regulations we may be subject to fines suspension of production alteration of our manufacturing processes sales

limitations and criminal and civil liabilities Existing or future regulations could require us to procure expensive pollution abatement or

remediation equipment to modify product designs or to incur expenses to comply with environmental regulations Any failure to control

the use disposal or storage or adequately restrict the discharge of hazardous substances could subject us to future liabilities and could

have material adverse effect on our business Based on our periodic reviews of the operating policies and practices at all of our facilities

we believe that our operations are currentiy in substantial compliance in all material respects
with all applicable environmental laws and

regulations and that the cost of continuing compliance will not have material effect on our financial condition or results of operations

We have been identified by the United States Environmental Protection Agency EPA state governmental agencies or other

private parties as potentially responsible party PRP under the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability

Act CERCLA or equivalent state or local laws for clean up and response costs associated with sites at which remediation is required

Because CERCLA has been construed to authorize joint and several liability the EPA could seek to recover all dean up costs from any

one of the PRPs at sire despite the involvement of other PRPs At certaln sites financially responsible PRPs other than AVX also are

or have been involved in site investigation and clean up activities We believe that any liability resulting from these sites wifi be

apportioned between AVX and other PRPs
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To resolve our liability at each of the sites at which we have been named PRP by the EPA we have entered into various

administrative orders and consent decrees with federal and state regulatory agencies governing the timing and nature of investigation and

remediation We have paid or reserved for all reasonably estimable amounts required under the terms of these orders and decrees

corresponding to our apportioned share of the liabilities As is customary the orders and decrees regarding sites where the PRPs are not

themselves implementing the chosen remedy contain provisions allowing the EPA to reopen the agreement and seek additional amounts

from settling PRPs in the event that certain contingencies occur such as the discovery of significant new information about site

conditions during clean-up or substantial cost overruns for the chosen remedy The existence of these reopener provisions combined

with the difficulties of reliably estimating clean up costs and the joint and several nature of CERCLA liability makes it difficult to predict

the ultimate liability at any site with certainty

InJuly 2007 we received oral notification from the EPA and in December 2007 written notification from the U.S Department of

Justice indicating that the United States is preparing to exercise the reopener provision under 1991 consent decree relating to the

environmental conditions at and remediation of New Bedford Harbor in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts In 1991 in connection

with that consent decree we paid $66.0 million plus interest toward the environmental conditions at and remediation of the harbor in

settiement with the EPA and the Commonwealth of Massachusetts subject to reopener provisions including reopener
if certain

remediation costs for the site exceed $130.5 million The EPA has indicated that remediation costs through October 22 2010 were

approximately $427.7 million not all of which is subject to the reopener provisions In March 2011 the EPA issued the Fourth

Explanation of Significant
Differences EDS that explains the planned changes to the existing remedial action plan for the harbor to

include the use of confined
aquatic disposal CAD cells along with interim off-site transportation and disposal

of contaminated dredge

spoils and the continued use of on-site storage
ESD provides future cost estimates under the new remedial action plan in addition to

cost incurred to date ranging from $362 million to $401 million net present value based on certain assumptions

We have not received complete documentation of
past response costs from EPA and therefore have not yet completed an

investigation of the monies
spent or available defenses in light of these notifications and indications We have also not yet determined

whether the Company can avoid responsibility for all or some portion of these
past or future costs because the remediation method has

changed over time and costs can be appropriately allocated to parties other than the Company We anticipate further discussions with the

U.S Department ofJustice the EPA and the Commonwealth of Massachusetts regarding the remediation plan and to explore options

for resolution of the matter We are continuing to investigate the claim as well as potential defenses and other actions with
respect to the

site In light of the foregoing the potential impact of this matter on our financial position results of operations and cash flows cannot be

determined at this time

On June 2006 we received Confirmation of Potential Liability Demand and Notice of Decision Not to Use Special Notice

Procedures dated May 31 2006 from the EPA with regard to $1.6 million subsequently modified to $0.9 miffion of past costs as well

as future costs for environmental remediation related to the purported release of hazardous substances at an abandoned facility referred

to as the Aerovox Facility the Facility located at 740 Belleville Avenue New Bedford Massachusetts Aerovox Corporation

predecessor of AVX sold this Facility to an unrelated third
party

in 1973 subsequent unrelated owner Aerovox Inc the last

manufacturer to own and
operate in the Facility filed for bankruptcy in 2001 and abandoned the Facility We have had numerous

meetings with the EPA the Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection and the City of New Bedford
regarding

the

potential environmental remediation of the Facility and the assignment
of

responsibility among the parties Agreements between EPA
the Commonwealth of Massachusetts the City of New Bedford and AVX are now in place setting

forth the nature of the remedy the

allocation of financial responsibility and the schedule for remediation pursuant to the federai law Agreements with the state regulatory

authotities have yet to be concluded Based on our estimate of remediation costs we accrued $18.2 million in the quarter ended March

31 2009 which amount less monies spent is included in the $24.6 million reserved as of March 31 2011 for potential environmental

liability as discussed below as an estimate of our potential liability related to performance of certain environmental remediation actions at

the Facility This accrual assumes the anticipated performance of certain remedial actions by the other parties Our accrual represents the

estimate of our costs to remediate however until all
public comment periods have expired

and EPA has reviewed such comments the

agreements are finalized and the remediation is complete we can not be certain there will be no additional costs

During fiscal 2011 AVX was named as third
party defendant in case filed in Massachusetts Supetior Court captioned DaRosa

Ciy ofNewBedfordas well as parallel case brought by the City of New Bedford containing substantially the same allegations These cases

relate to former disposal site in the City of New Bedford located at Parlier Street The City asserts that AVX contributed to that site

We intend to defend vigorously the claims that have been asserted in this lawsuit At this early stage of the litigation there has not been

determination as to responsible parties or the amount if any of damages Accordingly the potential impact of the case on our financial

position
results of

operations and cash flows cannot be determined at this time
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In September 2007 we received notice from Horry Land Company the owner of
property adjacent to our South Carolina factory

that Horry Land Companys property
value had been negatively impacted by alleged migration

of certain pollutants from our property

and demanding $5.4 million in compensatory damages exclusive of unspecified costs This suit has now been resolved Such resolution

did not have material impact on our results of operations or cash flows

In addition two other suits have been filed against the Company relating to the same contamination One suit was filed in the South

Carolina State Court on November 27 2007 by certain individuals seeking certification as class action which has not
yet

been

determined The other suit is commercial suit filed on January 16 2008 currently pending in South Carolina State Court byJohn

Nance and JDS Development of Myrtie Beach Inc We intend to defend vigorously the claims that have been asserted in these two

lawsuits At this stage of the litigation there has not been determination as to the amount if any of damages Accordingly the potential

impact of the lawsuits on our financial position results of operations and cash flows cannot be determined at this time

We have reserves of approximately $24.6 million at March 31 2011 related to these various environmental matters discussed above

During the quarter ended March 31 2011 we accrued $6.5 million based on our estimate of remediation costs related to the property

adjacent to our South Carolina factory Except for the matters discussed above while no assurance can be given we do not believe that

any additional costs to be incurred by AVX at any of the sites will have material adverse effect on our financial condition results of

operations or cash flows

We also
operate on sites that may have

potential
future environmental issues as result of activities at sites during AVXs long history

of manufacturing operations or prior to the start of operations by AVX Even though we may have rights of indemnity for such

environmental matters at certain sites regulatory agencies in those jutisdictions may require us to address such issues Once it becomes

probable that we will incur costs in connection with remediation of site and such costs can be reasonably estimated we establish

reserves or adjust our reserves for our projected share of these costs separate account receivable is recorded for any indemnified costs

We are not involved in any pending or threatened proceedings that would
require

curtailment of our operations We continually

expend funds to ensure that our facilities comply with applicable environmental regulations While we believe that we are in material

compliance with applicable environmental laws we cannot accurately predict future developments and do not necessarily have knowledge

of all
past occurrences on sites that we currently occupy More stringent environmental regulations may be enacted in the future and we

cannot determine the modifications if any in our operations that any such future regulations might require or the cost of compliance

with such regulations Moreover the risk of environmental liability and remediation costs is inherent in the nature of our business and

therefore there can be no assurance that material environmental costs including remediation costs will not arise in the future

Company Information and Website

We file annual quarterly and current reports proxy statements and other documents with the Securities and Exchange Commission

SEC under the Secutities Exchange Act of 1934 the Exchange Act The public may read and copy any materials that we file with

the SEC at the SECs Public Reference Room at 100 Street NE Washington DC 20549 The public may obtain information on the

operation of the Public Reference Room by caking the SEC at 1-800 SEC 0330 Also the SEC maintains an Internet website that

contains
reports proxy and information statements and other information regarding issuers including us that file electronically with the

SEC The public can obtain any documents that we file with the SEC at http//www.sec.gov

In addition our Company website can be found on the Internet at www.avx.com Copies of each of our filings with the SEC on

Form 10 Form 10 and Form and all amendments to those reports can be viewed and downloaded free of charge as soon as

reasonably practicable after the reports and amendments are electronically filed with or furnished to the SEC To view the
reports

from

our website go to Corporate Information then Investor Relations then Financial Reports



The following corporate governance related documents are also available free on our website

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics Supplement Applicable to the Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Controllers and Financial I\4anagers

Corporare Governance Guidelines

Audit Committee Charter

Compensation Committee Charter

Equity Compensation Committee Charter

Special Advisory Committee Charter

Contact the Board Whistleblower and Ethics Hotline Procedures

To review these documents go to our website click on Corporate Information then on Corporate Governance

Executive Officers of the Registrant

Our executive officers are elected annually by our Board of Directors or in some cases appointed in accordance with our bylaws and

each officer holds office until the next annual election of officers or until successor has been duly elected and qualified or until the

officers death or resignation or until the officer has otherwise been removed in accordance with our bylaws The following table

provides certain information regarding the executive officers of the Company as of March 31 2011

Name Age Position

John Gilbertson 67 Chief Executive Officer and President

Marshall Jackson 62 Executive Vice President of Sales and Marketing

Peter Venuto 58 Vice President of Sales

Carl Eggerding 61 Vice President Chief Technology Officer

Kurt Cummings 55 Vice President Chief Financial Officer Treasurer and Secretary

Keith Thomas 57 Vice President President of Kyocera Electronic Devices

Peter Coffis 59 Vice President of Tantalum Products

John Sarvis 61 Vice President of Ceramic Products

John Lawing 60 Vice President of Advanced Products

Kathleen Kelly 57 Vice President of Human Resources

John Gilbertson

Chief Executive Officer since 2001 President since 1997 Chief Operating Officer from 1994 until 2001 and member of the Board

since 1990 Executive Vice President from 1992 to 1997 Senior Vice President from 1990 to 1992 and employed by the Company since

1981 Managing Director of Kyocera since 1999 Director of Kyocera since 1995 Member of the Board of Directors of Kyocera

International Inc United States subsidiary of Kyocera since 2001

Marshall Jackson

Executive Vice President of Sales and Marketing since 2000 Senior Vice President of Sales and Marketing from 1994 to 2000 Vice

President of Sales and Marketing from 1990 to 1994 Vatious sales marketing and operational positions with the Company since 1969

Peter Venuto

Vice President of Sales since 2009 Vice President of North American and European Sales from 2004 to 2009 Vice President of North

American Sales from 2001 to 2004 Divisional Vice President of Strategic Accounts from 1998 until 2000 Director of Strategic Accounts

from 1990 until 1997 Director of Business Development from 1987 until 1989 Employed by the Company since 1987
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Carl Eggerding

Vice President Chief Technology Officer since 2000 Vice President of Technology from 1997 to 2000 Employed by the Company

since 1996 Prior to 1996 employed by IBM as Director of Development for Organic Packaging Technology

Kurt Cummings

Vice President ChiefFinancial Officer and Treasurer since 2000 Secretary since 1997 Corporate Controller from 1992 to 2000 Prior

to 1992 Partner with Deloitte Touche LLP

Keith Thomas

Vice President since 2001 President of Kyocera Electronic Devices since 2004 Vice President of IKyocera Developed Products from

2001 to 2004 Divisional Vice President of IKyocera Developed Products from 1992 until 2001 Employed by the Company since 1980

Peter Coils

Vice President of Tantalum Products since 2001 Plant Manager of Paignton facility from 1998 to 2001 Engineering Manager from

1997 to 1998 Plant Manager of Lanskroun facility from 1996 to 1997 Employed by the Company since 1968

John Sarvis

Vice President of Ceramic Products since 2005 Divisional Vice President Ceramics Division from 1998 to 2005 Prior to 1998

held various Marketing and Operational positions Employed by the Company since 1973

John Lawing

Vice President of Advanced Products since 2005 Divisional Vice President of Advanced Products from 2002 to 2005 and Divisional

Vice President of Leaded Products from 1997 to 2002 Prior to 1997 held positions in Engineering Technical Operational and Plant

management Employed by the Company since 1981

Kathleen Kelly

Vice President of Human Resources since 2010 Prior to the acquisition of American Technical Ceramics by the Company in 2007 served

as Vice President Administration and as Corporate Secretary of American Technicai Ceramics from November 929

Item 1A Risk Factors

From time to time information provided by us including but not limited to statements in this report or other statements made by

or on our behalf may contain forward-looking information within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995

Such statements involve number of risks uncertainties and contingencies many of which are beyond our control which may cause

actual results performance or achievements to differ materially from those
anticipated

.4 Our businesses routinely encounter and address risks some of which will cause our future results to be different sometimes

materially different than we presentiy anticipate Discussion about the important operational risks that our businesses encounter can

also be found in Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations included elsewhere in this

Form 10-1K We wish to caution the reader that the following important risk factors and those factors described elsewhere in this
report

or other documents that we file or furnish to the Securities and Exchange Commission could cause our actual results to differ materially

from those stated in forward-looking statements contained in this document and elsewhere Below we have described our current view

of certain important strategic risks These risks are not presented in order of importance or probability of occurrence Our reactions to

material future developments as well as our competitors reactions to those developments will impact our future results
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We operate in cyclical business which could result in significant fluctuations in demand for our products

Cyclical changes in our customers businesses have resulted in and may in the future result in significant fluctuations in demand for

our products our unit costs and our profitability Most of our customers are in cyclical industries Their requirements for passive

components and connectors fluctuate significantly as result of changes in general economic conditions and other factors During

periods of increasing demand they typically seek to increase their inventory of out products to avoid production bottlenecks When

demand for their products peaks and begins to decline as has happened in the past they tend to reduce or cancel orders for our products

while they use up accumulated stocks Business cycles vary
somewhat in different

geographical regions and customer industries

Significant fluctuations in sales of our products impact our unit manufacturing costs and impact our profitability by making it more

difficult for us to predict our production raw materials and shipping needs Changes in demand mix needed technologies and end use

markets may adversely affect our ability to match our products inventory and capacity to meet customer demand and could adversely

affect our operating results and financial condition We are also vulnerable to general economic events or trends beyond our control and

our sales and profits may suffer in periods of weak demand

We must consistently reduce costs to remain competitive and to combat downward price trends

To remain competitive and to combat the impact of potential downward price trends we must consistently reduce the total costs of

our products Our industry is intensely competitive and prices for existing products tend to decrease over their life cycle To remain

competitive we must achieve continuous cost reductions through process
and material improvements We must also be in position to

minimize our customers inventory financing costs and to meet their other goals for supply chain management In addition as result of

our efforts to streamline manufactuting logistics operations and enhance operations in low cost labor markets we have incurred

restructuring costs in the past and could incur restructuring costs in the future in response to changes in global economic and market

conditions If we are unsuccessful in implementing restrucruting or other cost reduction plans we may expetience disruptions in our

operations and incur higher ongoing costs which may adversely affect our business financial condition and operating results

We attempt to improve profitability by operating in countries in which manufacturing costs are lower but the shift of

operations to these regions may entail considerable expense

Our strategy is aimed at achieving significant production cost savings through the transfer to and expansion of manufacturing

operations in countries with lower productions costs such as the Czech Republic Malaysia Mexico China and El Salvador Duting this

process we may experience under utilization of certain plants and factories in higher-cost regions and capacity constraints in plants and

factories located in lower cost regions This under utilization may result initially in production inefficiencies and higher costs These costs

also include those associated with compensation in connection with work force reductions and plant closings in the higher-cost regions

and start up expenses equipment relocation costs manufactuting and construction delays and increased depreciation costs in connection

with the initiation or expansion of production in lower cost regions In addition as we implement transfers of certain of our operations

we may expetience sttikes or other
types

of unrest as result of lay offs or termination of our employees in higher cost countries

Due to our global operations we are subject to many laws governing international relations including but not limited to the Foreign

Corrupt Practices Act and the U.S Export Administration Act which prohibit improper payments to government officials and resttict

where and how we can do business what information or products we can supply to certain countries and what information we can

provide to non-U.S government Although we have procedures and policies in place that should mitigate the risk of violations of these

laws there is no guarantee
that they will be sufficiently effective If and when we acquire new businesses we may not be able to ensure

that the pre-existing controls and procedures meant to
prevent

violations of the rules and laws were effective and we may not be able to

implement effective controls and procedures to prevent
violations quickly enough when integrating newly acquired businesses

We encounter competition in substantially all areas of our business

We compete primarily on the basis of engineering product quality price customer service and delivery time Competitors include

large diversified companies some of which have substantial assets and financial resources as well as medium to small companies There

can be no assurance that additional competitors will not enter into our existing markets nor can there be any assurance that we will be

able to compete successfully against existing or new competition
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We must continue to develop innovative products to remain competitive

Most of the fundamental technologies used in the passive components industry have been available for long time The market is

nonetheless typified by rapid changes in product designs and technological advantages allowing for better performance and/or lower cost

New applications are frequentiy found for existing technologies and new technologies occasionally replace existing technologies for some

applications or open up new business opportunities in other areas of application Successful innovation is critical for maintaining

profitability in the face of potential erosion of
selling prices for existing products To combat downward seffing price pressure for our

products and to meet market requirements we must continue to develop innovative products and production techniques Sustaining and

improving our profitability depends great
deal on our ability to develop new products quickly and successfully to customer

specifications Non-customized commodity products are especially vulnerable to price pressure but customized products have also

experienced price pressure in recent years We have traditionally combated downward pricing trends in part by offering products with

new technologies or applications that offer our customers advantages over older products We also seek to maintain profitability by

developing products to our customers specifications that are not readily available from competitors Developing and marketing these

products requires start up costs that may not be recouped if those new products or production techniques are not successful There are

numerous risks inherent in this process including the risks that we will be unable to anticipate the direction of technological change or

that we will be unable to develop and market new products and
applications in timely fashion to satisfy customer demands If this

occurs we could lose customers and expetience adverse effects on our results of operations

Our operating results are sensitive to raw material availability quality and cost

Many of our products require the use of raw materials that are available from only limited number of
regions

around the world are

available from only limited number of
suppliers or maybe subject to significant fluctuations in market prices Our results of operations

may be adversely affected if we have difficulty obtaining these raw materials our key suppliers experience fmancial difficulties the quality

of available raw materials deteriorates or there are significant price increases for these raw materials For example the
prices

for

tantalum platinum silver nickel gold copper and palladium raw materials that we use in the manufacture of our products are subject to

fluctuation and have risen significantiy in the past Our inability to recover costs through increased sales prices could have an adverse

impact on our results of operations For petiods in which the ptices for these raw materials rise we may be unable to pass on the

increased cost to our customers which would result in decreased margins for the products in which they are used For periods in which

margins are declining we may be required as has occurred in the past to write down our inventory carrying cost of these raw materials

Depending on the extent of the difference between market price and our carrying cost the wtite down could have an adverse effect on

our results of operations

From time to time there have been short term market
shortages

of raw matetials While these shortages have not histotically

adversely affected our ability to increase production of products they have historically resulted in higher raw material costs for us There

can be no assurance that any of these market shortages in the future would not adversely affect our ability to increase production

particularly duting periods of growing demand for our products

Our sales to distribution sales channel customers may fluctuate

Seffing products to our customers in the electronic component disttibution sales channel has associated risks including without

limitation that sales can be negatively impacted on short term basis as result of changes in distributor inventory levels these changes

may be unrelated to the purchasing trends by the end customer In the past we have gone through cycles of inventory correction as

disttibutors increase or decrease their supply chain inventories based upon their anticipated market needs and economic conditions

Our backlog is subject to customer cancellation

We generally do not obtain firm long-term purchase commitments from our customers Uncertain economic and geopolitical

conditions have resulted in and may continue to result in some of our customers delaying the delivery of products that we manufacture

for them and placing purchase orders for lower volumes of products than previously anticipated Many of the orders that comptise our

backlog may be canceled by our customers without penalty Our customers may on occasion order components from multiple sources to

ensure timely delivery when delivery lead times are particularly long They may cancel orders when business is weak and inventoties are

excessive situation that we have experienced duting periods of economic slowdown Therefore we cannot be certain that the amount

of our backlog does not exceed the level of orders that will ultimately be delivered Our results of
operations could be

adversely impacted

if customers cancel matetial portion of orders in our backlog
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Our growth strategy may include growth through acquisitions which may involve significant risks

We may from time to time make strategic acquisitions of other companies or businesses as we believe such acquisitions can help to

position us to take advantage of growth opportunities
Such acquisitions could introduce

significant risks and uncertainties including

risks related to integrating the acquired businesses and
achieving benefits from the acquisitions More particularly tisks and uncertainties

of cm acquisition strategy
could include difficulties in

integrating newly acquired
businesses and

operations
in an efficient and effective

manner challenges in achieving strategic objectives cost savings and other benefits from acquisitions risk that our markets do not

evolve as anticipated and that the technologies acquired do not prove to be those needed to be successful in those markets potential

loss of key employees of the acquired businesses risk of diverting the attention of senior management from our operations tisks

of entering new markets in which we have limited experience tisks associated with integrating financial reporting and internal control

systems difficulties in expanding information technology systems and other business
processes to accommodate the acquired

businesses and future impairments of goodwill
and other intangible assets of an acquired business

Changes in our environmental liability and compliance obligations may adversely impact our operations

Our manufacturing operations products and/or product packaging are subject to environmental laws and regulations governing air

emissions wastewater discharges the handling disposal and remediation of hazardous substances wastes and certain chemicals used or

generated in our manufacturing process employee health and safety labeling or other notifications with
respect to the content or other

aspects
of our processes products or packaging restrictions on the use of certain matenals in or on design aspects

of our products or

product packaging and responsibility for disposal of products or product packaging We also operate on sites that may have potential

future environmental issues as result of activities at sites during the long history of manufacturing operations of AVX or its corporate

predecessor or prior to the start of operations by AVX Even though we may have rights of indemnity for such environmental matters

at certain sites regulatory agencies in those jurisdictions may require us to address such issues We establish reserves for specifically

identified potential environmental liabilities when the liabilities are probable and can be reasonably estimated Nevertheless there can be

no assurance we will not be obligated to address environmental matters that could have an adverse impact on our operations In

addition more stringent environmental regulations may be enacted in the future and we cannot presently deterntine the modifications if

any in our operations that any such future regulations might require or the cost of compliance with these regulations In order to resolve

liabilities at various sites we have entered into various administrative orders and consent decrees some of which may be under certain

conditions reopened or subject to renegotiation See Environmental Matters in Item elsewhere in this Form 10-K for additional

information

Changes in regulatory and environmental compliance obligations of critical suppliers may adversely impact our operations

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act the Dodd Frank Act signed into law on July 21 2010

includes Section 1502 which requires the SEC to adopt additional disclosure requirements related to the source of certaln conflict

minerals for issuers for which such conflict minerals are necessary to the functionality or product manufactured or contracted to be

manufactured by that issuer The metals covered by the proposed rules promulgated on December 15 2010 are commonly referred to

as 3TG and include tin tantalum tungsten
and gold We use many of these materials in our production processes

If the rules are 1-

adopted as proposed in order to be able to accurately report our compliance with Section 1502 we may have to perform supply chain

due diligence third parry verification and possibly ptivate sector audits on the sources of these metals all the way down to the mine of

origin Global supply chains are complicated with multiple layers and suppliers between the mine and the final product Accordingly we

could incur significant cost related to the compliance process While the impact of Section 1502 on our business is uncertain at this time

we could potentially have difficulty in procuting needed matetials and in satisfying the final disclosure requirements when finalized by the

SEC

We use significant amounts of electtical energy and processed ores in our production process The Kyoto Protocol is an international

agreement that purports to set binding targets for signatory industtialized countries for reducing greenhouse gas
emissions Further

number of governments or governmental bodies have introduced or are contemplating legislative and regulatory change in response to

the potential impacts of climate change including pending U.S legislation that if enacted would limit and reduce greenhouse gas
emissions through cap and trade system of allowances and credits among other provisions There is also current and emerging

regulation in other countties in which we or our customers operate such as the mandatory renewable
energy target

in Australia Any

significant sustained increase in energy costs could result in increases in our capital expenditures operating expenses and costs of

important raw materials resulting in an adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition

The potential physical impacts of climate change on the companys operations are highly uncertaln and will be particular to the

geographic circumstances These effects may adversely impact the cost production and financial performance of our operations
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Our results may be negatively affected by foreign currency exchange rates

We conduct business in several international currencies through our worldwide operations and as result are subject to foreign

exchange exposure due to changes in exchange rates of the various currencies Volatility in exchange rates can positively or negatively

affect our sales gross margins and retained earnings In order to minimize the effects of movements in
currency exchange rates we enter

into forward exchange contracts to hedge external and intercompany foreign currency
transactions In addition we attempt to minimize

currency exposure risk by producing our products in the same country or region in winch the products are sold thereby generatmg

revenues and incurring expenses in the same currency There can be no assurance that our approach will be successful especially in the

event of significant and sudden decline in the value of any of the international currencies of our worldwide operations We do not

engage in purchasing forward exchange contracts for speculative purposes

Our operating results may be adversely affected by foreign operations

We have significant international
operations

and our operating
results and financial condition could be adversely affected by

economic political health regulatory
and other circumstances existing

in
foreign countries in which we operate International

manufacturing and sales are subject to inherent tisks including production disruption by employee union or works council actions

changes in local economic or political conditions the imposition of
currency exchange restrictions unexpected changes in regulatory

environments potentially adverse tax consequences and the exchange rate tisk discussed above Further we have operations suppliers

and customers in countries that are in the Pacific Basin winch may be more susceptible to certain natural disasters including earthquake

tsunami and typhoon Although we have operations around the world significant natural event could disrupt supply or production or

significantiy affect the market for some or all of our products There can be no assurance that these factors wifi not have an adverse

impact on our production capabilities or otherwise adversely affect our business and operating results

We receive government grants
from some countties in winch we operate These

grants are intended to promote employment and are

generaliy conditioned on the recipient maintaining certain employment levels To the extent the number of employees falls below the

prescribed employment levels we could be
required to refund all or portion

of the
grants

received

Our products are subject to stringent specifications and operating tolerances

All of our products are built to specifications and tested by us for adherence to such specifications before shipment to customers We
warrant that our products will meet such specifications In the past we have not incurred significant warranty claims However we have

seen an increasing
trend for claims related to end market product application

failures or end user recali or damage claims related to

product defects which could result in future claims that have an adverse impact on our results of operations

Fluctuations in the market values of our investment portfolio could adversely affect our financial condition and operating

results

Although we have not recognized any matetial losses related to our cash equivalents short-term investments available for sale

securities or long-term investments future declines in the market values of such investments could have an adverse effect on our

financial condition and operating results Given the global nature of our business we have investments both domesticaliy and

internationally Additionaliy portion of our overall investment portfolio
includes investments in the financial sector If the issuers of

such investments default on their obligations or their credit ratings are negatively impacted by liquidity credit deterioration or losses

financial results or other factors the value of our cash equivalents short term investments available for sale secutities and long term

investments could decline and have an adverse effect on our financial condition and operating results In addition our ability to find

investments that are both safe and
liquid

and that provide reasonable return may be impaired This could result in lower interest

-j

income and/or higher other-than-temporary impairments

Credit risk on our accounts receivable could adversely affect our financial condition and operating results

Our outstanding trade receivables are not covered by collateral or credit insurance While we have procedures to monitor and limit

exposure to credit tisk on our trade receivables there can be no assurance such procedures will effectively limit our credit risk and avoid

losses which could have an adverse effect on our financial condition and operating results
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Counterparty non-performance to derivative transactions could adversely affect our financial condition and operating results

We evaluate the credit qualities of potential counterparties to derivative transactions and only entet into agreements with those

deemed to have minimal credit risk at the time the agreements are executed Our foteign exchange hedge portfolio is diversified across

several credit line banks We carefully monitor the amount of exposute we have with any given bank We also periodically monitot

changes to counterpartv credit quality as well as our concentration of ctedit exposute to individual counterparties We do not hold or

issue derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes credit crisis could have an impact on our hedging contracts if

our counterparties are forced to file for bankruptcy or are otherwise unable to perform their obligations If we are required to terminate

hedging contracts prior to their scheduled settiement dates we may be required to recognize losses In some cases we have master

netting agreements that help reduce the risk of counterparry exposures

Returns on pension and retirement plan assets and interest rate changes could affect our earnings in future periods

The funding position of our pension plans is impacted by the performance of the financial markets particularly the equity markers

and the discount rate used to calculate our pension obligations for funding and expense purposes Recent significant declines in the

financial markers have negatively impacted the value of the assets in our defined benefit pension plans In addition lower bond yields

may reduce our discount rates resulting in increased pension contributions and expense

Funding obligations are determined under government regulations and measured each year based on the value of the assets and

liabilities on specific date If the financial markets do nor provide the long term returns that are expected we could be required to make

larger contributions The equity markets can be and recently have been very volatile and therefore our estimate of future contribution

requirements can change in relatively short periods of time In low interest rate environment the likelihood of higher contributions in

the future increases

We may not generate sufficient future taxable income which may require additional deferred tax assets valuation allowances

As part of the process of preparing our consolidated financial statements we are required to estimate our tax assets and liabilities in

each of the jurisdictions in which we operate
This

process involves management estimating the actual current tax exposure together with

assessing temporary differences resulting from different treatment of items for tax and accounting purposes These differences result in

deferred tax assets and liabilities that are included within our consolidated balance sheets We assess the likelihood that our deferred tax

assets will be recoverable as result of future taxable income and to the extent we believe that
recovery is not likely we establish

valuation allowance

We have recorded valuation allowances due to uncertainties related to our ability to realize some of our deferred tax assets primarily

consisting of certain net operating losses carried forward before they expire The valuation allowance is based on our estimates of future

taxable income over the periods that our deferred tax assets will be recoverable

We also record provision for certain international federal and state tax contingencies based on the likelihood of obligation when

needed In the normal course of business we are subject to challenges from U.S and non-U.S tax authorities regarding the amount of

taxes due These challenges may result in adjustments of the timing or amount of taxable income or deductions or the allocation of

income among tax jurisdictions Further during the ordinary course of business other changing facts and circumstances may impact our

ability to utilize tax benefits as well as the estimated taxes to be paid in future periods In the event that actual results differ from our

estimates we may need to adjust tax accounts and related payments which could materially impact our financial condition and results of

operations

If we are unable to generate sufficient future taxable income in certain jurisdictions or if there is significant change in the actual tax

rates or the time period within which the underlying temporary differences become taxable or deductable we could be required to

increase our valuation allowances against our deferred tax assets resulting in an increase in our effective tax rare and an adverse impact on

future operating results
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Liquidity requirements could necessitate transfers of existing cash balances between our subsidiaries which may be subject to

restrictions or cause unfavorable tax or earnings consequences

significant portion of our cash and investment securities are held by international subsidiaries While we intend to use significant

amount of the cash held overseas to fund our international operations and growth if we encounter significant need for liquidity

domestically or at particular location that we cannot fulfill through other internal or external sources we may experience unfavorable

tax and earnings consequences due to cash transfers These adverse consequences would occur for example if the transfer of cash into

the United States is taxed and no offsetting foreign tax credit is available to offset the U.S tax liability resulting in lower earnings

Changes in global geopolitical and general economic conditions and other factors beyond our control may adversely impact

our business

The following factors beyond our control could adversely impact our business

global economic slowdown in any one or all of our markets

Rapid escalation of the cost of regulatory cnmpliance and litigation

Unexpected government policies
and

regulations affecting us or our significant customers sales or production facilities

Unforeseen regional conflicts or actions including but not limited to armed conffict and trade wars that could impact us or our

customers production capabilities

Unforeseen interruptions to our business with our significant customers and
suppliers resulting from but not limited to strikes

financial instabilities computer malfunctions environmental disruptions natural disasters or inventory excesses

We
operate

in continually changing business environment and new factors emerge from time to time Other unknown and

unpredictable factors also could have either adverse or positive effects on our future results of
operations or fmancial condition

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item Properties

Our fixed assets include certain plants and warehouses and substantial quantity of machinery and equipment most of which is

general purpose machinery and equipment using tools and fixtures and in many instances have automatic control features and special

adaptations Our plants warehouses machinery and equipment are in good operating condition and are well maintained Substantially all

of our facilities are in regular use We consider the
present

level of fixed assets along with planned capital expenditures as suitable and

adequate for our operations in the current business environment Our capital expenditures for plant and equipment were $44.2 million in

fiscal 2009 $28.9 million in fiscal 2010 and $27.5 million in fiscal 2011

We believe that our facilities are suitable and adequate for the business conducted therein and are being appropriately
utilized for

their intended purposes Utilization of the facilities varies based on demand for the products We continuously review our anticipated

requirements for facilities and based on that review may from time to time acquire or lease additional facilities and/or dispose of existing

facilities

We conduct manufacturing operations throughout the world Most of our operations are certified to the ISO 9000 quality standard

set of fundamental quality system standards developed by the International Organization for Standardization Some of our facilities are

also
qualified

and
registered

under the more stringent QS 9000 comprehensive quality system for continuous improvement developed

by the U.S automotive industry
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Virtually all of our manufacturing reseatch and development and warehousing facilities could at any time be involved in the

manufactuting sale or distribution of passive components PC and interconnect ptoducts CP The following is list of our facilities

their approximate square footage whether they are leased or owned and description of their use

Approximate

Square Type of Description

Location Footage Interest of Use

UNITED STATES

Fountain Inn SC 300000 Owned Headquarters/Manufacturing/ Warehouse

Myrtie Beach SC 500000 Owned Manufacturing/Warehouse/Research PC CP

Olean NY 113000 Owned Manufacturing PC
Jacksonville FL 100000 Owned Manufacturing PC

Huntington Station NY 94000 Owned Manufacturing/Research PC
Biddeford ME 73600 Owned Manufacturing PC

Conway SC 71000 Owned Manufacturing/Office PC
Atlanta GA 49.000 Leased Office/Warehouse PC CP

Sun Valley CA 25000 Leased Manufacturing PC
Colorado Springs CO 15000 Owned Manufacturing PC

NON U.S

Tianjin China 520000 Owned Manufacturing PC
San Salvador El Salvador 420000 Owned Manufacturing PC
Saint Apoffinaire France 322000 Leased Manufacturing/Research PC

Lanskroun Czech Republic 500000 Owned Manufacturing/Warehouse/Research PC

Lanskroun Czech Republic 55000 Leased Manufacturing/Warehouse PC
Uherske Hradiste Czech Republic 276000 Owned Manufacturing PC CP

Uherske Hradiste Czech Republic 65000 Leased Manufacturing/Warehouse CP PC

Penang Malaysia 190000 Owned Manufacturing PC

Coleraine Ireland 185000 Owned Manufacturing/Research PC

Betzdorf Germany 115000 Owned Manufacturing CP

Juarez Mexico 116000 Owned Manufacturing PC CP

Jerusalem Israel 88000 Leased Manufacturing/Research PC

Hong Kong 30000 Owned Warehouse/Office PC CP

In addition to the foregoing we own and lease number of sales offices throughout the world In the
opinion of management our

properties and equipment generally are in good operating condition and are adequate for our present needs We do not anticipate

difficulty in renewing existing leases as they expire or in finding alternative facilities

Item Legal Proceedings

In September 2007 we received notice from Horry Land Company the owner of property adjacent to our South Carolina factory

that Horry Land Companys property
value had been negatively impacted by alleged migration of certain pollutants from our property

and demanding $5.4 million in compensatory damages exclusive of unspecified costs This suit has now been resolved Such resolution

did not have material impact on our results of operations or cash flows

In addition two other suits have been filed against the Company relating to the same contamination One suit was filed in the South

Carolina State Court on November 27 2007 by certain individuals
seeking certification as class action which has not yet been

determined The other suit is commercial suit filed on January 16 2008 currently pending in South Carolina State Court byJohn

Nance and JDS Development of Myrtle Beach Inc We intend to defend
vigorously the claims that have been asserted in these two

lawsuits At this stage of the litigation there has not been detertriination as to the amount if any of damages Accordingly the potential

impact of the lawsuits on our fmancial position results of operations and cash flows cannot be determined at this time
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During fiscal 2011 AVX was named as third
party

defendant in case filed in Massachusetts Superior Court captioned DaRosa

Ci1i ofNewBedfordas well as parallel case brought by the City of New Bedford containing substantially the same allegations These cases

relate to former disposal site in the City of New Bedford located at Parker Street The City asserts that AVX contributed to that site

We intend to defend vigorously the claims that have been asserted in this lawsuit At this
stage

of the litigation there has not been

determination as to responsible parties or the amount if any of damages Accordingly the
potential impact of the case on our fmancial

position results of operations and cash flows cannot be determined at this time

See Environmental Matters in Item elsewhere in this Form 10 for discussion of our involvement as PRP at certain

environmental clean-up sites

We are involved in disputes warranty and legal proceedings arising in the normal course of business While we cannot predict the

outcome of these proceedings we believe based upon review with legal counsel that none of these proceedings wifi have material

impact on our financial position results of operations or cash flows However we cannot be certain if the eventual outcome and any

adverse result in these or other matters that may arise from time to time may harm our financial position results of operations or cash

flows

Item Removed and Reserved

PART II

Item Market for the Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Market for Common Stock

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange and trades under the symbol AVX At May 2011 there were

approximately 382 holders of record of the Companys common stock In addition there were numerous beneficial holders of the

common stock representing persons whose stock is held in nominee or street name accounts through brokers The following table

presents the high and low sale prices for our common stock on the New York Stock Exchange and the dividends declared
per common

share for each
quarter

for the fiscal years ended March 31 2010 and March 312011 On May 19 2011 our Board of Directors declared

$0.055 dividend
per

share of common stock with
respect to the

quarter
ended March 31 2011 Future dividends if any wifi be

determined by the Companys Board of Directors and may depend on the Companys future profitability and anticipated operating cash

requirements

Common Stock Price Range Dividends Declared

2010 2011 Per Share

High Low High Low 2010 2011

Q3 29 ft0400

Per 24 1JA3 116 9942
.Thr çfir ll Qt9f90 ft0450

FourthQuarter 1442 1166 1624 1468 00450 00550

The name address and phone number of our stock transfer agent and registrar is

The Amcrican Stock Transfer and Trust Company
59 Maiden Lane Plaza Level

New York New York 10038

800-937 5449
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Stock Performance Graph

The following chart shows from the end of fiscal
year

2006 to the end of fiscal
year 2011 changes in the value of $100 invested in

each of the Companys common stock Standard Poors 500 Composite Index and
peer group consisting of three companies whose

businesses are representative of our business segments The companies in the peer group are Kemet Corporation Vishay

Intertechnology Inc and EPCOS AG

AVX Corporation zr- SP 500 ---0--- PeerGroup

Cumulative Total Return

3/31/06 3/31/07 3/31/08 3/31/09 3/31/10 3/31/11

.AVXNYSE 100 87 74 53 84 ..20

SP500 100 112 106 66 98 114

COMPARISON OF YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
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based on inilial investment ci $1 OU invested on March31 2UU5 in stock or index including

reinvestment of dividends Fiscal year ending March31

Mar-07 Mar-08 Mar-09 Mar-10
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Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer

The following table provides information regarding purchases by the Company during the fourth quarter ended March 31 2011 of

equity securities that are registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act

Total Number of Shares Maximum Number of

otal Number of Average Purchased as Part of Shares that may yet be

Shares Price Paid Publicly Announced Purchased Under the

Period Purchased Per Share Plans or Programs Plans or Programs

1/1/11 1/31/11 7142664

2/1/11 2/28/11 15000 1575 15000 7127664

3/1/11 3/31/11 10533 14.98 10533 7117131

Total 25533 15.43 25533 7117131

Our Board of Directors have approved stock repurchase authorizations whereby up to 15000000 shares of common stock

could be purchased from time to time at the discretion of management
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Item Selected Financial Data

The following table sets forth selected consolidated financial data for AVX for the five fiscal years ended March 31 2011 The

selected consolidated financial data for the five fiscal years ended March 312011 are derived from AVXs audited consolidated financial

statements The consolidated financial data ser forth below should be read in conjunction with AVXs consolidated financial statements

and the notes thereto and Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations included elsewhere

in this Form 10-K

Selected Financial Data

in thousands except per share data

Years Ended March 31 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Operating Results Data

Net sales 1498495 1619275 1389613 1304966 1653176

Cost of sales 1201337 1328491 1158196 1027368 1195790

Vendursettkmcn S9
Restructuring charges 2421 15123 4397

Gross profit 2.718 27820

gsiio yoiipoiics Q7
Esm Eke oo

tructur m.harge

ge

Other operating income 4051 3519
Profit from ppui
Interest income 40033 43226 21112 7120 6569

l2 li
Other net 3143 530 578 1336 2766

Income before income taxes 217566 203365 97139 176357 334259

Provision for income taxes 63701 53892 16293 33499 90256

Net income 153865 149473 80846 142858 244003

Income per share

Basic 0.89 0.87 0.47 0.84 1.44

Diluted 0.89 0.87 0.47 0.84 1.43

Weighted average common shares outstanding

Basic 172047 171487 170616 170247 170025

Diluted 172751 172065 170689 170274 170390

942

As of Match 31 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Balance Sheet Data

phrig cpta U.A9 983102 495
Total assets 1899536 2109078 1872529 2051492 2319482

Stockholdereqyity 669753 t999

Years Ended March 31 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Other Data

Capital xpendinir es 51881 70886 7d7
developm expense 222
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Overview

AVX Corporation is leading worldwide manufacturer and supplier of broad line of passive electronic components and

interconnect products Electronic components and connector products manufactured by AVX are used in
virtually

all
types of electronic

products including those in consumer electronics telecommunications automotive military/aerospace medical computer and industrial

markets The Company has five main product groups Ceramic Components Tantalum Components Advanced Components
Interconnect and Kyocera Electronic Devices These product lines are organized into three

reportable segments Passive Components
Interconnect and KED Resale

Consolidated revenues for the fiscal year
ended March 31 2011 were $1653.2 million with net income of $244.0 million compared to

consolidated revenues of $1305.0 million with net income of $142.9 million for the fiscal year ended March 31 2010 During fiscal 2011

and 2010 we saw strong demand momentum throughout both years as the overall global economy recovered from the global economic

recession that began during the second half of fiscal 2009 and continued into early fiscal 2010 Supply chain inventory levels improved

throughout fiscal 2011 as customers replenished inventories to meet the increased demand for electronic components Overall sales

ptices for our commodity component products remained relatively stable during the fiscal
year as increasing demand and favorable

pricing environment helped to moderate
typical pricing declines We continue to proactively take actions to manage our production

output and
tightly control our cost structure to help offset tising energy and material costs As result gross margins have remained at

historically high levels

In fiscal 2011 we generated operating cash flows of $152.1 million We used cash generated from operations for strategic purchases

of certain raw materials thereby improving our competitive position and to fund capital expenditures fund other working capital needs

repurchase
shares of our common stock which are held as treasury stock and pay increased dividends We have approximately $1 billion

of cash cash equivalents and securities investments and no debt as of March 31 2011

We remain committed to investing in new products and improvements to our production processes as well as continued investment

in research development and engineering in order to provide our customers with new generations of passive component and connector

product solutions We are currently producing more sophisticated electronic component parts necessitated by the breadth and increase in

functionality of the electronic devices such as smart phones tablets and renewable energy products that are manufactured by our

customers As result we have continued our focus on value added advanced products and connectors to serve this expanding market

We are also focused on controffing and reducing costs to accommodate market forces and offset tising costs of energy and raw materials

We do this by investing in automated manufacturing technologies enhancing manufacturing materials and efficiencies and rationalizing

our production capabilities around the world We believe that this philosophy wifi enable us to adapt qnickly and benefit as market

conditions change and provide shareholder value

In addition we may from time to time consider strategic acqnisitions of other companies or businesses in order to expand our

product offerings or otherwise improve our market
position We evaluate

potential acquisitions
in order to position ourselves to take

advantage of
profitable growth opportunities

Outlook

Near-Term

With unpredictable global geopolitical and economic conditions we are uncertain what to expect
from fiscal 2012 despite the

rebound in consumer and industrial market demand in fiscal 2011
resulting in improving global

demand for our electronic component

products Near-term results for us will depend on the impact of the overall global geopolitical and economic conditions and its impact on

telecommunications information technology hardware automotive consumer electronics and other electronic markets Looking ahead

visibility is low and forecasting is challenge in this uncertain and volatile market We expect to see typical pticing pressure in the

markets we serve as electronic component product supply comes more in balance with demand In response to anticipated market

conditions we expect to continue to focus on cost management and product line rationalization to maximize earnings potential We also

continue to focus on process improvements and enhanced production capabilities in conjunction with our focus on the sales of value

added electronic components to support todays advanced electronic devices If current global geopolitical and economic conditions

worsen the overall impact on our customers as well as end user demand for electronic products could have significant adverse impact

on our near-term results

23



Long-Term

Although there is uncertainty in the near-term market as result of the current global geopolitical and economic conditions we

continue to see opportunities for long term growth and profitability improvement due to projected increase in the long term

worldwide demand for electronic devices which
require

electronic components such as the ones we sell cost reductions and

improvements in our production processes and opportunities for growth in our Advanced Component and Interconnect product lines

due to advances in component design and our production capabilities We have fostered our financial health and the strength of our

balance sheet We remain confident that our strategies will enable our continued long term success

Results of Operations

Year Ended March 31 2011 compared to Year Ended March 31 2010

Net sales for the fiscal
year

ended March 31 2011 were $1653.2 million compared to $1305.0 million for the fiscal
year

ended March

31 2010

The table below
represents product group revenues for the fiscal

years
ended March 31 2009 2010 and 2011

Years Ended March 31
2010

Passive Component sales were $1041.9 million for the fiscal
year ended March 31 2011 compared to $805.9 million during the fiscal

year
ended March 31 2010 The sales increase in Passive Components reflects the overall improvement in global markets in all regions

and virtually all markets and sales channels that began during the second half of fiscal 2010 and continued throughout fiscal 2011 The

increase in sales of Ceramic Components reflects an increase in the volume of unit sales and favorable pricing environment resulting from

increased demand due to the improved global economy and
resulting increased demand for electronic components The increase in sales

of Tantalum Componcnts is the result of increased demand and favurable pricing cnvirunmcnr for rhesc cumpuncnts as customcrs

increased purchases in
response to the improved economic conditions Increased revenues from Advanced Components reflect the

higher demand resulting from the improved global economy and
resulting

end user demand for electronic component products and

concurrent demand for increased functionality in electronic products such as smart phones tablets and automobiles

lC.IDP and 11CC Resale sales were $440.1 million for the fiscal year ended March 31 2011 compared to $338.7 million during the

fiscal
year

ended March 31 2010 When compared to fiscal 2010 the increase duting fiscal 2011 is primarily attributable to an increase in

KDP unit sales volume due to higher end user demand particularly in the telecommunications market resulting from the improvement in

global economic conditions

Total Interconnect sales including AVX manufactured and KEC Recale Cnnnectorc were $171.2 millinn in the fiscal year ended

March 31 2011 compared to $160.4 million during the fiscal
year ended March 31 2010 This increase was primarily attributable to

increases in the automotive and telecommunications based product sectors as result of the improved global economy

Our sales to independent electronic distributors represented 42% of total net sales for the fiscal year ended March 31 2011

compared to 39% for fiscal
year

ended March 31 2010 Our sales to distributor customers involve specific ship and debit and stock

rotation programs for which sales allowances are recorded as reductions in sales Such allowance charges were $32.8 million or 4.5% of

gross
sales to distributor customers for the fiscal year ended March 31 2011 and $29.5 million or 5.S% of

gross
sales to distributor

customers for the fiscal
year

ended March 31 2010 Applications under such programs for fiscal years ended March 31 2011 and 2010

were approximately $32.8 million and 29.7 million respectively

2011Sales revenue in thousands 2009

c.7 22J
pmiet 4.6 Q2I 2I22

Advanced Components 434039 369811 410110

Total Passive Components 868105 805861 1041900

KDP and KKC Resale 354258 338701 440050

KEC Resale Connectors 76209 73973 66088

Total ICED Resale 430467 412674 506138

Interconnect 91041 86431 105138
Total Revenue 1389613 1304966 1653176
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Geographically compared to the fiscal year ended March 31 2010 sales for the fiscal year ended March 31 2011 increased 30.9% in

Europe 28.0 in the Americas and 23.6% in Asia reflective of higher demand and favorable pricing for products due to the

improvement in the global market conditions throughout the fiscal
year

and the relative strength of the automotive markets in Europe
The movement of the U.S dollar against certain foreign currencies resulted in an unfavorable impact on sales for the

year ended March

31 2011 of approximately $1 8.1 million when compared to the prior year

Gross profit in the fiscal year ended March 312011 increased to 27.7U/o of sales or $457.4 million compared to gross profit margin

of 21.3% of sales or $278.2 million in the fiscalyear ended March 312010 This increase is primarily result of the increased demand for

higher margin value added products particularly for Tantalum Components due to end user demand for increased functionality and

electronic content increases in end user products such as automobiles smart phones tablets hybrid and electric cars and renewable

energy products and concerns about component availability This increased demand for higher margin value added products in

conjunction with improved operating efficiencies and disciplined cost management resulted in higher margins throughout fiscal 2011

During the fiscal year ended March 31 2011 benefits from higher production volumes and lower operating costs were partially offset by

higher raw materials and energy cost During the fiscal
year

ended March 31 2010 we incurred restructuring charges of $4.4 million

related to headcount reductions and other
charges including those related to facility closures as we reallgned production capabilities and

reduced operating costs There were no restructuring charges for the year ended March 312011 During the fiscal year ended March 31

2010 we also recorded $5.0 million reduction in cost of sales related to vendor settlement In addition during fiscal 2011 when

compared to the prior year there was favorable impact on costs of approximately $22.3 million due to currency movement of the U.S

dollar against certain foreign currencies

Seffing general and administrative expenses for the fiscal year ended March 31 2011 were $123.9 million or 7.5% of net sales

compared to $108.5 million or 8.3 of net sales for the fiscal year ended March 31 2010 The increase in selling general and

adniinistrative expenses was primarily due to higher seffing expenses resulting from higher sales During the fiscal
year

ended March 31

2010 we recorded $2.5 million of
restructuring charges primarily

related to headcount reductions to reduce ongoing seffing general and

administrative expenses

Research development and
engineering expenditures which encompass the personnel and related expenses devoted to developing

new products and maintaining existing products processes
and technical innovations were approximately $23.7 million and $24.7 million

in fiscal 2011 and 2010 respectively Research and development costs included therein increased in fiscal 2011 to $7.4 million compared

to $6.8 million in fiscal 2010 Engineering expenses decreased $1.5 million to $16.3 million in fiscal 2011 compared to $17.8 million in

fiscal 2010

Profit from operations for the fiscal year ended March 31 2011 increased $154.2 million to $324.9 million compared to $170.7

million for the fiscal year ended March 31 2010 In addition to the factors discussed above during the fiscal year ended March 312011

we recognized $8.6 million for environmental and legal related charges related to the implementation of certain environmental

remediation actions in the U.S Gains of $3.6 million resulting from the sale of excess corporate assets are included in other operating

income for the fiscal
year

ended March 31 2010

Other income increased $3.6 million to $9.3 million in fiscal 2011 compared to $5.7 million in fiscal 2010 This increase is attributable

to net foreign currency gains of approximately $1.7 million in fiscal 2011 compared to net foreign currency losses of$l .6 million in fiscal

2010 partially
offset by decrease in interest income of approximately $0.6 million

resulting
from lower return rates on investment

balances when compared to the prior fiscal year Included in other income for the fiscal year ended March 31 2010 are impairment

charges related to the dedllne in market value of certain available for-sale securities of $0.4 million

The effective tax rate for the fiscal year ended March 31 2011 was 27.0% compared to an effective tax rate of 19.0% for the fiscal

year ended March 31 2010 This higher effective tax rate is primarily due to the decrease in the amount of deferred tax liabilities

associated with certain of our foreign branch losses taken as deductions in ptior years U.S tax returns no longer subject to U.S income

tax recapture regulations
In March 2007 the Internal Revenue Service enacted change in tax regnlations that reduced the U.S income

tax recapture period for such foreign branch losses from 15 to years As result $3.6 million of
recapture expired in the current fiscal

year compared to $16.6 million during the fiscal
year

ended March 31 2010 In addition the effective tax rate increased due to the

increase in pre tax income in higher tax rate jurisdictions when compared to the same period last year partially offset by one time tax

benefit of $2.2 million attributable to an increase in available U.S foreign tax credits relating to one of our European operations We
estimate further reduction in deferred tax liabilities of $3.2 million during the fiscal year ending March 312012 as the recapture petiod

related to foreign branch losses deducted in certain prior years expire

As result of the factors discussed above net income for the fiscal year ended March 31 2011 was $244.0 million compared to

$142.9 million for the fiscal
year

ended March 31 2010
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Year Ended March 31 2010 Compared to Year Ended March 31 2009

Net sales for the fiscal
year

ended March 312010 were $1305.0 million compared to $1389.6 million for the fiscal
year

ended March

31 2009

Passive Component sales were $805.9 million for the fiscal
year ended March 31 2010 compared to $868.1 million during the fiscal

year ended March 31 2009 The sales decrease in Passive Components reflects the overall decline in global markets particularly during

the first half of fiscal 2010 resulting from the financial crisis as both consumers and manufacturers reduced spending Lower demand

particularly in the consumer electronics telecom industrial equipment and automotive markets was partially offset by improving medical

and military markets Lower revenues from Advanced Components reflect the lower demand primarily in the semiconductor and medical

equipment businesses resulting from the decline in global economic conditions The decrease in sales of Ceramic Components reflects

decrease in the volume of unit sales higher mix of commodity priced components and moderate decrease in
average seffing prices

The increase in sales of Tantalum Components is the result of increased demand for these components as customers increased purchases

in
response to the improved economic conditions during the second half of the fiscal

year as well as improved medical and military

activity

KDP and KKC Resale sales were $338.7 million for the fiscal year ended March 31 2010 compared to $354.3 million during the

fiscal year ended March 31 2009 When compared to fiscal 2009 the decrease during fiscal 2010 is primarily attributable to decrease in

KDP unit sales volume due to lower end user demand particularly in the telecommunications market resulting from the uncertainty in

global economic conditions

Total Interconnect sales including AVX manufactured and KEC Resale Connectors were $160.4 million in the fiscal year ended

March 31 2010 compared to $167.3 million during the fiscal year ended March 31 2009 This decrease was primarily attributable to

decrease in the telecommunications based product sectors as resulr of the adverse economy particularly in the first half of fiscal 2010

This decrease was slightly
offset by increases in sales volume related ro production demand for automotive electronics when compared to

the prior year

Our sales ro independent electronic distributors represented 39% of total net sales for the fiscal
year

ended March 31 2010

compared to 36% for fiscal
year

ended March 31 2009 This increase is primarily attributable to improved global economic conditions

during the second half of fiscal 2010 However in spite of the improving global economy our distributor customers remained cautious

and limited their intake of inventory and maintained lower inventory levels Our sales to distributor customers involve specific ship and

debit and stock rotation programs for which sales allowances are recorded as reductions in sales Such allowance charges were $29.5

miffion or 55% of
gross

sales to distributor customers for the fiscal
year

ended March 312010 and $38.5 million or 7.2% of
gross

sales

to distributor customers for the fiscal
year

ended March 31 2009 Applications under such programs for fiscal
years

ended March 31
2010 and 2009 were approximately $29.7 million and $39.1 million respectively

Geographically compared to the fiscal year ended March 31 2009 sales for the fiscal
year

ended March 31 2010 decreased 8.8% in

Europe 6.8% in the Americas and 4.2% in Asia reflective of lower demand for products due to the decline of the global market during

the financial crisis The movement of the U.S dollar against certain foreign currencies resulted in favorable impact on sales for rhe
year

ended March 31 2010 of approximately $11.2 million when compared to the prior year

Gross profit in the fiscal year ended March31 2010 increased to 21.3 o/ of sales or $278.2 million compared to gross profit margin

of 15.6% of sales or $216.3 million in the fiscal
year

ended March 31 2009 This increase is primarily result of the sale of higher margin

value added products our disciplined cost management and the realization of benefits from previously initiated restructuring actions

During the fiscal year ended March 31 2010 we incurred restructuring charges of $4.4 million related to headcount reductions and other

charges including those related to facility closures as we continued to realign production capabilities and reduce operating costs to support

current business levels compared to $15.1 million of restructuring charges during fiscal
year

ended March 31 2009 We also recorded

$5.0 million reduction in cost of sales related to vendor settlement during the fiscal
year

ended March 31 2010 During the fiscal
year

ended March 31 2010 lower production volumes and higher material costs were partially offset by our continued efforts to increase

production efficiency lower operating costs and
pursue

increased capacity for the production of value added products In addition there

was negative impact on costs due to currency movement of the U.S dollar against certain foreign currencies of approximately $8.4

million when compared to the prioryear partially offset by lower depreciation expense
in the fiscal

year
ended March 31 2010 which was

$7.3 million lower than in the previous fiscal
year primarily as result of lower levels of capital spending

26



Selling general and administrative expenses for the fiscal year ended March 31 2010 were $108.5 million or 8.3% of net sales

compared to $121.9 million or 8.8% of net sales for the fiscal year ended March 31 2009 The decrease in seffing general and

administrative expenses was primarily due to lower selling expenses resulting from lower sales and savings resulting from effective cost

control measures and the realization of benefits from previous restructuring actions During the fiscal years ended March 31 2010 and

2009 we recorded $2.5 million and $3.5 million of restructuring charges respectively primarily related to headcount reductions to reduce

ongoing selling general and administrative expenses

Research development and engineering expenditures which encompass the personnel and related expenses devoted to developing

new products and maintaining existing products processes
and technical innovations were approximately $31.5 million and $24.7 million

in fiscal 2009 and 2010 respectively as overall spending was reduced in response to the weak overall global economic conditions

Research and development costs included therein decreased in fiscal 2010 to $6.8 million compared to $11.7 million in fiscal 2009 as

certain
projects

transferred into full scale production Engineering expenses decreased $2.0 million to $17.8 million in fiscal 2010

compared to $19.8 million in fiscal 2009

Profit from operations for the fiscal
year

ended March 312010 increased $94.0 million to $170.7 million compared to $76.7 million

for the fiscal year ended March 31 2009 This increase is result of the factors discussed above In addition gains of $3.6 and $4.0

million resulting from the sale of excess corporate assets are included in other
operating income for the fiscal

years
ended March 31 2U

and 2009 respectively During the fiscal
year ended March 31 2009 we recognized an $18.2 million environmental charge as an estimate

of our potential liability related to the performance of certain environmental remediation actions at an abandoned facility in New

Bedford Massachusetts

Other income decreased $14.7 million to $5.7 million in fiscal 2010 compared to $20.4 million in fiscal 2009 This decrease is

atttibutable to decrease in interest income of approximately $14.0 million resulting from lower return rates on investment balances in

addition to higher net foreign currency losses when compared to the prior fiscal year Included in other income are impairment charges

related to the decline in market value of certain available for-sale securities of $0.4 million and $4.2 million for the fiscal years ended

March 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

The effective tax rate for the fiscal
year

ended March 31 2010 was l9.O% compared to an effective tax rate of 16.8% for the fiscal

year
ended March 31 2009 The increase in rate was due to higher pre tax income in higher tax rate jurisdictions partially offset by

reduction of $16.6 million of deferred tax liabilities resulting from certain of our foreign branch losses taken as deductions for U.S

income tax purposes no longer being subject to the U.S income tax
recapture regulations This compares to reduction of $8.5 million of

such deferred tax liabilities no longer being subject to the U.S income tax recapture regulations during the fiscal
year

ended March 31

2009

As result of the factors discussed above netincome for the fiscalyear ended March 312010 was $142.9 million compared to $80.8

million for the fiscal year ended March 31 2009

Financial Condition

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our liquidity needs arise primarily from working capital requirements dividends capital expenditures and acquisitions Historically

the Company has satisfied its liquidity requirements through funds from operations and investment income from cash and investments in

secutities As of March 31 2011 we had current ratio of 6.8 to $1006.3 million of cash cash equivalents and investments in

securities $2039.4 million of stockholders equity and no debt

Net cash from operating activities was $152.1 million for the fiscal
year

ended March 31 2011 compared to $200.5 million for the

fiscal
year

ended March 31 2010 and $65.0 million for the fiscal
year

ended March 31 2009 The decrease in fiscal 2011 is primarily the

result of
higher inventory balances due to strategic purchase of certain raw materials and other net changes in working capital to support

revenue growth

Purchases of property and equipment were $27.5 million in fiscal 2011 $28.9 million in fiscal 2010 and $44.2 million in fiscal 2009

Expenditures primarily related to expanding the production capabilities of the
passive component and connector product lines expanding

production capacity in lower cost regions as well as the implementation of improved manufacturing processes We continue to make

strategic capital investments in our advanced and specialty passive component and interconnect products and
expect to incur capital

expenditures of approximcitely $60 million in Fiscal 2012 The actual amount of
capital expenditures will depend upon the outlook for

end market demand
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Our funding is internally generated through operations
and investment income from cash and investments in securities We have

assessed the condition of the currenr global credit market on our current business and believe that based on the financial condition of rhe

Company as of March 31 2011 that cash on hand and cash expected to be generated from
operating

activities and investment income

from cash and investments in securities will be sufficient to satisfy our anticipated financing needs for working capital capital

expenditures environmental clean-up costs research development and engineering expenses
and any dividend payments or stock

repurchases to be made during the upcoming year
While

changes in customer demand have an impact on our future cash requirements

changes in those requirements are mitigated by our ability to adjust manufacturing capabilities to meet increases or decreases in customer

demand Additionally we do not anticipate any significant changes in our ability to generate or meet our liquidity needs in the long-term

In fiscal 2009 2010 and 2011 dividends of $27.3 million $27.2 million and $32.3 miffion respectively were paid to stockholders

On October 192005 the Board of Directors of the Company authorized the repurchase of 5000000 shares of our common stock

On October 17 2007 the Board of Directors of the Company authorized the repurchase of an additional 5000000 shares of our

common stock As of March 31 2011 there were 7117131 shares that may yet be repurchased under this program

We purchased 1123672 shares at cost of$1 1.4 miffion during fiscal 2009 321969 shares at cost of $3.7 million during fiscal 2010

and 445528 shares at cost of $6.2 million during fiscal 2011 The repurchased shares are held as treasury stock and are available for

general corporate purposes

At March 31 2011 we had contractual obligations for the acquisition or construction of plant and equipment aggregating

approximately $6.9 million

We make contributions to our U.S and international defined benefit plans as required under various pension funding regulations

We made contributions of $14.7 million to our defined benefit plans duting the year ended March 31 2011 and estimate that we will

make contributions of approximately $7.8 million during the fiscal year ending March 31 2012 We have unfunded actuatially computed

pension liabilities of approximately $18.5 million related to these defined benefit pension plans as of March 31 2011

We are lessee under long term operating leases primarily for office space plant and equipment Future minimum lease

commitments under non cancelable operating leases as of March 31 2011 were approximately $18.5 miffion

From time to time we enter into delivery contracts with selected suppliers for certain metals used in our production processes The

delivery contracts represelit routine purchase orders for delivery within three months and payment is due upon receipt

We are involved in disputes warranty and legal proceedings arising in the normal course of business While we cannot predict the

outcome of these proceedings we believe based upon review with legal counsel that none of these proceedings will have material

impact on our financial position results of operations or cash Bows However we cannot be certain if the eventual outcome and any

adverse result in these or other matters that may arise from time to time may harm our financial position results of operations or cash

flows
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On June 2006 we received Confirmation of Potential Liability Demand and Notice of Decision Not to Use Special Notice

Procedures dated May31 2006 from the EPA with regard to $1.6 million subsequently modified to $0.9 millionof
past costs as well

as future costs for environmental remediation related to the purported release of hazardous substances at an abandoned facility referred

to as the Aerovox Facility the Facility located at 740 Believille Avenue New Bedford Massachusetts Aerovox Corporation

predecessor of AVX sold this Facility to an unrelated third party in 1973 subsequent unrelated owner Aerovox Inc the last

manufacturer to own and operate in the Facility filed for bankruptcy in 2001 and abandoned the Facility We have had numerous

meetings with the EPA the Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection and the City of New Bedford regarding the

potential environmental remediation of the Facility and the assignment of responsibility among the parties Agreements between EPA
the Commonwealth of Massachusetts the City of New Bedford and AVX are now in place setting forth the nature of the remedy the

allocation of financial responsibility and the schedule for remediation pursuant to the federal law Agreements with the state regulatory

authorities have
yet to be concluded Based on our estimate of remediation costs we accrued $18.2 million in the

quarter
ended March

..1 312009 which amount less monies spent is included in the $24.6 million reserved as of March 31 2011 for potential CERCLA liability

as discussed below as an estimate of our potential liability related to performance of certain environmental remediation actions at the

Facility This accrual assumes the anticipated performance of certain remedial actions by the other parties Our accrual represents the

estimate of our costs to remediate however until all public comment petiods have expired and EPA has reviewed such comments the

agreements are finalized and the remediation is complete we can not be certain there will be no additional costs See Note 11 to our

consolidated financial statements elsewhere herein for further discussion related to our potential liability related to the environmental

conditions at and remediation of New Bedford Harbor in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts

We have been named as potentially responsible party in state and federal administrative proceedings seeking conttibution for costs

associated with the correction and remediation of environmental conditions at vatious waste disposal and operating sites In addition we

operate on sites that may have potential future environmental issues as result of activities at sites during AVXs long history of

manufacturing operations or prior to the start of operations by AVX Even though we may have tights of indemnity for such

environmental matters at certain sites regulatory agencies in those jutisdictions may require us to address such issues Once it becomes

probable that we will incur costs in connection with remediation of site and such costs can be reasonably estimated we establish

reserves or adjust our reserves for our projected share of these costs separate account receivable is recorded for any indemnified costs

Our environmental reserves are not discounted and do reflect any possible future insurance recoveties which are not expected to be

significant but do reflect reasonable estimate of cost shating at multiple party sites or indemnification or our liability by third party

We currently have environmental reserves for current remediation compliance and legal costs totaling $24.6 million at March 31
2011

Disclosures about Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The Company has the foliowing contractual obligations and commitments as of March 31 2011 as noted below

FY 2013

FY 2014

7534

FY 2015

FY 2016

4124

As discussed in Note to our consolidated financial statements elsewhere herein the amount of unrecognized tax benefits recorded

in the Companys balance sheet at March 31 2011 was $12.6 million The Company is unable to reasonably estimate in which future

petiods these amounts wifi be ultimately settied

During the fiscal
year

ended March 31 2011 we made conttibutions of $5.5 million to Company sponsored retirement savings plans

Our conttibutions are partially based on employee contributions as percentage of their salaties Certain conttibutions by the Company
are discretionary and are determined by the Board of Directors each year We expect that our conttibutions for the year ending March

31 2012 wifi be approximately the same as in fiscal 2011

During the fiscal year ended March 312011 we made conttibutions of $6.2 million to our U.S defined benefit plans and $8.5 million

to our international defined benefit plans These contributions are based on percentage of pensionable wages or to satisfy funding

requirements We expect that our contributions for the fiscal year ending March 31 2012 will be none for our U.S defined benefit plans

due to their fuliy funded status and approximately $7.8 million for our international defined benefit plans

Contractual Obligations in thousands Total FY 2012 Thereafter

Operating Leases 18549 5674 1217

X15fin Equipm en
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We have an employment agreement with our Chief Executive Officer which provides for salary continuance equivalent to his most

recent base salary as full time employee during two-year advisory period upon retirement from the Company

From time to time we enter into delivery contracts with selected suppliers for certain metals used in our production processes The

delivery contracts represent routine purchase orders for delivery within three months and payment is due upon receipt As of March 31

2011 we had no material outstanding purchase commitments

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations is based upon our consolidated financial

statements and the notes thereto which have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United

States The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make estimates judgments and assumptions that affect the

reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and

the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reported periods On an ongoing basis management evaluates its estimates

and judgments including those related to revenue recognition warranties inventories pensions income taxes and contingencies

Management bases its estimates judgments and assumptions on historical experience and on vatious other factors that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances the results of which form the basis for making judgments about rhe carrying values of assets and

liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources While our estimates and assumptions are based on our knowledge of current

events and actions we may undertake in the future there can be no assurance that actual results will not differ from these estimates and

assumptions On an ongoing basis we evaluate our accounting policies and disclosure practices In managements opinion the critical

accounting policies and estimates as defmed below are more complex in nature and require higher degree of judgment than the

remainder of our accounting policies described in Note to our consolidated financial statements elsewhere herein

Revenue Recognition

All of our products are built to specification and tested by us for adherence to such specification before shipment to customers We

ship products to customers based upon firm orders Shipping and handling costs are included in cost of sales We recognize revenue

when the sales
process is complete This occurs when products are shipped to the customer in accordance with the terms of an

agreement of sale there is fixed or determinable
seffing price titie and risk of loss have been transferred and collectability is reasonably

assured Estimates used in determining sales allowance programs described below are subject to the volatiuities of the market place This

includes but is not limited to changes in economic conditions pricing changes product demand inventory levels in the supply chain the

effects of technological change and other variables that might result in changes to our estimates Accordingly there can be no assurance

that actual results will not differ from those estimates

Returns

Sales revenue and cost of sales reported in the income statement are reduced to reflect estimated returns We record an estimated

sales allowance for returns at the time of sale based on using historical trends current pricing
and volume information other market

specific information and input from sales marketing and other key management The amount accrued reflects the return of value of the

customers inventory These procedures require the exercise of significant judgments We believe that these procedures enable us to

make reliable estimates of future returns Our actual results approximate our estimates When the
product is returned and verified the

customer is given credit against their accounts receivable

Distribution Programs

portion of our sales are to independent electronic component distributors which are subject to various distributor sales programs

We
report provisions for distributor allowances in connection with such sales programs as reduction in revenue and report distributor

allowances in the balance sheet as reduction in accounts receivable For the distribution programs described below we do not track the

individual units that we record against specific products sold from distributor inventories which would allow us to directly compare

revenue reduction for credits recorded during any period with credits ultimately awarded in respect of products sold during that period

Nevertheless we believe that we have an adequate basis to assess the reasonableness and reliability of our estimates for each program
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Distributor Stock Rotation Program

Stock rotation is program whereby distributors are allowed to return for credit qualified inventory semi-annually equal to certain

percentage primarily limited to 5% of the previous six months net sales We record an estimated sales allowance for stock rotation at the

time of sale based on percentage of distributor sales using historical trends current pricing and volume information other market

specific information and input from sales marketing and other key management These procedures require the exercise of significant

judgment We believe that these procedures enable us to make reliable estimates of future returns under the stock rotation program Our

actual results approximate our estimates When the product is returned and verified the distributor is given credit against their accounts

receivable

Distributor Ship-from Stock and Debit Program

Ship from-Stock and Debit ship and debit is program designed to assist distributor customers in meeting competitive prices in

the marketplace on sales to their end customers Ship and debit programs require request from the distributor for pricing adjustment

for specific part
for sale to the distributors end customer from the distributors stock Ship and debit authorizations may cover

current and future distributor activity for specific part for sale to their customer At the time we record sales to the distributors we

provide an allowance for the estimated future distributor activity related to such sales since it is probable that such sales to disttibutors

will result in ship and debit activity We record an estimated sales allowance based on sales during the petiod credits issued to

distributors distributor inventory levels historical trends market conditions pticing trends we see in our direct sales activity with otiginal

equipment manufacturers and other customers and input from sales marketing and other key management These procedures require

the exercise of significant judgment We believe that these procedures enable us to make reliable estimates of future credits under the

ship and debit program Our actual results approximate our estimates At the time the disttibutor ships the part from stock the

distributor debits us for the authorized pticing adjustment

Special Incentive Programs

We may offer special incentive discounts based on amount of product ordered or shipped At the time we record sales under these

agreements we provide an allowance for the discounts on the sales for which the customer is eligible to take The customer then debits

us for the authotized discount amount

Warranty

All of our products are built to specifications
and tested by us for adherence to such specifications before shipment to customers

We warrant that our products will meet such specifications We accrue for product warranties when it is probable that customers will

make claims under warranties relating to products that have been sold and reasonable estimate of costs can be made The amount

accrued
represents

the direct costs of replacement and other potential costs resulting
from product not meeting specifications above and

beyond the return value of the customers affected product purchases Historically valid warranty claims which are result of products

not meeting specifications have been immaterial to our results of operations However there is no guarantee
that warranty claims in the

future will not increase or be material to results of operations as result of manufacturing defects end market product application

failures or end user recall or damage claims

Inventories

We determine the cost of raw matetials work in
process

and finished goods inventories by the first in first out FIFO method

Inventory costs include material labor and manufacturing overhead Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market realizable

value We value inventory at its market value where there is evidence that the utility of goods wifi be less than cost and that such write

down should occur in the current petiod Accordingly at the end of each period we evaluate our inventory and adjust to net realizable

value the carrying value and excess quantities We review and
adjust

the
carrying

value of our inventoties based on historical usage

customer forecasts received from the marketing and sales personnel customer backlog certain date code restrictions technology changes

demand increases and decreases market directional shifts and obsolescence and aging
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Income Taxes

As part of the process of preparing our consolidated financial statements we are required to estimate our tax assets and liabilities in

each of the jurisdictions in which we operate This process involves management estimating the actual current tax exposure together with

assessing temporary differences resulting from different treatment of items for tax and accounting purposes These differences result in

deferred tax assets and liabilities that are included within our consolidated balance sheets We assess the likelihood that our deferred tax

assets will be recoverable as result of future taxable income and to the extent we believe that recovery is not likely we establish

valuation allowance

We have recorded valuation allowances due to uncertainties related to our ability to realize some of our deferred tax assets primarily

consisting of certain net operating losses carried forward before they expire The valuation allowance is based on our estimates of future

taxable income over the periods that our deferred tax assets will be recoverable

We also record provision for certain international federal and state tax contingencies based on the likelihood of obligation when

needed In the normal course of business we are subject to challenges from U.S and non-U.S tax authorities regarding the amount of

taxes due These challenges may result in adjustments of the timing or amount of taxable income or deductions or the allocation of income

among tax jurisdictions Further during the ordinary course of business other changing facts and circumstances may impact our abthty to

utilize tax benefits as well as the estimated taxes to be paid in future periods We believe that
any potential tax exposures

have been

sufficiently provided
for in the consolidated financial statements In the event that actual results differ from these estimates we may need

to adjust tax accounts and related payments which could materially impact our fmancial condition and results of operations

We account for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in our financial srarements We recognize in our financial statements the

impact of tax position if that position would more likely than not be sustained on audit based on the technical merits of the position

Accruals for estimated interest and penalties are recorded as component of interest expense

We record deferred tax liabilities for temporary differences associated with deductions for foreign branch losses claimed by us in our

U.S income tax returns as these deductions are subject to recapture provisions in the U.S income tax code When the
recapture period

expires for these deductions the liabilities are removed and the tax benefit is recognized in the income tax provision

Pension Assumptions

Pension benefit obligations and the related effects on operations are calculated using actuarial models Two critical assumptions

discount rare and expected rate of return on plan assets are important elements of plan expense and/or liability measurement We evaluate

these assumptions at least annually The discount rate enables us to state expected future cash flows at present value on the measurement

date To determine the discount rate we apply the expected cash flows from each individual pension plan to specific yield curves at the

plans measurement date and determine level equivalent yield that may be unique to each plan lower discount rate increases the

present value of benefit obligations and increases pension expense To determine the expected long-term rate of return on pension plan

assets we consider the current and expected asset allocations as well as historical and expected returns on various categories of plan assets

Other assumptions involve demographic factors such as retirement mortality and turnover These assumptions are evaluated periodically

and are updated to reflect our experience Actual results in any given year will often differ from actuarial assumptions because of economic

and other factors In such cases the differences between actual results and actuarial assumptions are amortized over future periods

Environmental Matters

We are subject to federal state and local laws and regulations concerning the environment in the United States and to the

environmental laws and
regulations

of the other countries in which we operate Based on our periodic review of the operating policies and

practices at all of our facilities we helieve that our operations are currently in substantial cnmpliance in all material
respects

with all

applicable
environmental laws and regulations Regarding sites identified by the EPA at which remediation is required our ultimate liability

in connection with environmental claims will depend on many factors including our volumetric share of non-environmentally safe waste

the total cost of remediation and the financial viability of other companies having liability Additionally we operate on sites that may have

potential future environmental issues as result of activities at sites during the long history of manufacturing operations by AVX or its

corporate predecessor or prior to the start of operations by AVX Even though we may have rights of indemnity for such environmental

matters at certain sites regulatory agencies in those jurisdictions may require us to address such issues Once it becomes probable that we

will incur costs in connection with remediation of site and such costs can be reasonably estimated we establish reserves or adjust our

reserves for our projected share of these costs Our environmental reserves are not discounted and do not reflect any possible future

insurance recoveries which are not expected to be significant but do reflect reasonable estimate of cost sharing at multiple party
sires or

indemnification of our liability by third
parry
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2010 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB updated the accounting guidance related to fair value

measurements disclosures The updated guidance requires separate disclosure of significant transfers out of Levels and fair value

measurements ii requires disclosure of Level fair value measurements activity on gross basis iii clarifies existing disaggregation

requirements and iv clarifies existing input and valuation technique disclosure requirements The updated guidance is effective for

interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15 2009 except for the Level fair value measurement disclosure

requirements which are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2010 We adopted the
aspects

of the guidance that are

currentiy effective as of April 2010 and will adopt the remaining guidance on April
2011 The adoption of the effective guidance had

no effect on our financial position results of operations or cash flows and the adoption of the remaining guidance is not expected to

have any effect on our financial position results of operations or cash flows

Relationship with Kyocera and Related Transactions

Kyocera is the maj otity stockholder of AVX As of May 2011 Kyocera owned beneficially and of record 121800000 shares of

common stock representing approximately 72% of our outstanding shares

From January 1990 through August 15 1995 AVX was wholly owned by Kyocera On August 15 1995 Kyocera sold 22.9% or

39300000 shares of AVXs common stock and AVX sold an additional 4400000 shares of common stock in public offering In

February 2000 Kyocera sold an additional 10500000 shares of its AVX common stock

Our business includes transactions with Kyocera Such transactions involve the purchase of resale inventoties raw matetials supplies

and equipment the sale of products for resale raw materials supplies and equipment the payment of dividends subcontracting activities

and commissions See Note 13 to our consolidated fmancial statements elsewhere herein for more information on the related
party

transactions

One principai strategic advantage for AVX is our ability to produce broad product offering to our customers The inclusion of

products manufactured by Kyocera in that product offering is significant component of this advantage In addition the exchange of

information with Kyocera relating to the development and manufacture of multi layer ceramic capacitors and various other ceramic

products benefits AVX An adverse change in our relationship with Kyocera could have negative impact on our results of

operations AVX and Kyocera have executed severai agreements which govern the foregoing transactions and which are described

below

The
Speciai Advisory Committee of our Board comptised of our independent directors currentiy Messrs Stach DeCenzo and

Christiansen reviews and approves any significant agreements between AVX and Kyocera and any significant transactions between AVX
and Kyocera not covered by such agreements The committee is also responsible for reviewing and approving any agreements and

transactions between AVX and any other related party that are or may be within the scope of applicable rules regulations and guidance of

the New York Stock Exchange and Item 404 of Regulation if they arise The Speciai Advisory Committee
operates

under wtitten

charter which sets forth the policies and procedures for such approvals In approving any such agreement or transaction pursuant to

those procedures the Speciai Advisory Committee must determine that in its judgment the terms thereof are equivalent to those to

which an independent unrelated
party

would
agree at arms-length or are otherwise in the best interests of the Company and its

stockholders generally Each of the agreements desctibed below contains provisions requiting that the terms of any transaction under

such agreement be equivalent to those to which an independent unrelated party would
agree at arms length

Products Snpp/y and Distribution Agreement Pursuant to the Products Supply and Distribution Agreement the Distribution Agreement

AVX will act as the non exclusive distributor of certain Kyocera manufactured products to certain customers in certain territories

outside of Japan and ii Kyocera will act as the non exclusive disttibutor of certain AVX manufactured products within Japan The

Distribution Agreement has term of one year with automatic one-year renewals subject to the right of termination by either party at the

end of the then current term upon at least three months ptior written notice

Disclosure and Option to License Agreement Pursuant to the Disclosure and Option to License Agreement the License Agreement
AVX and Kyocera exchange confidential information relating to the development and manufacture of multi-layered ceramic capacitors

and various other ceramic products as weli as the license of technologies in certain circumstances The License Agreement has term of

one year with automatic one year renewals subject to the right of termination by either party at the end of the then current term upon at

least six months
prior

written notice
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Materials SuppyAgreement Pursuant to the Materials Supply Agreement the Supply Agreement AVX and Kyocera will from time

to time supply the other party with certain raw and semi-processed materials used in the manufacture of capacitors and other electronic

components The Supply Agreement has term of one year with automatic
one-year renewals subject ro the right of termination by

either party at the end of the then current term upon ar least six months prior written notice

Machiney and Bquzpment Purchase Agreement Pursuant to the Machinery and Equipmenr Purchase Agreement the Machinery

Purchase Agreement AVIX and Kyocera will from time to time design and manufacture for the other
party

certain equipment and

machinery of proprietary and confidential nature used in the manufacture of capacitors and other electronic components The

Machinery Purchase Agreement has term of one year with automatic one year renewals subject to the right of termination by either

party at the end of the then current term upon at least six months prior written notice

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Foreign Currency

We are exposed to foreign currency exchange risk with
respect to our sales profits and assets and liabilities denominated in

currencies other than the U.S dollar Although we use financial instruments to hedge certain foreign currency risks we are not fully

protected against foreign currency fluctuations and our reported results of operations could be affected by changes in foreign currency

exchange rates International revenues and expenses transacted by our foreign subsidiaries may be denominated in local currency See

Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements elsewhere herein for further discussion of derivative financial instmments

For fiscal 2011 our exposure to foreign currency exchange risk was estimated using sensitivity analysis which illustrates hypothetical

change in the average foreign currency exchange rates used during the year Actual changes in foreign currency exchange rates may differ

from this hypothetical change Based on hypothetical increase or decrease of lO% in the exchange rates assuming no hedging against

foreign currency rate changes we would have incurred foreign currency gain or loss of approximately $11.5 million in fiscal 2011

Materials

We are at risk to fluctuations in prices for commodities used to manufacture our products primarily tantalum palladium platinum

silver nickel gold and copper Prices for many of these metals have fluctuated significantly during the past year

Tantalum powder and wire are principal materials used in the manufacture of tantalum capacitor products These materials may be

purchased under contracts with suppliers from various parts of the world at prices that are subject to periodic adjustment and variations

in the market The tantalum required to manufacture our products has generally been available in sufficient quantity The limited

number of tantalum material suppliers has led to higher prices duting periods of increased demand

Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The following consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries together with the Report of Independent

Registered Public Accounting Firm thereon are presented beginning on page 40 of this report-- .-- --

March 79Lodi4mentsofOperadon Years Ended 79q9 2010 and

cm

of U-i __. 99 42

9w

Years Ended 9Piid 20

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 44

pçgd

ariiog2i4m

All financial statement schedules are omitted because of the absence of the conditions under which they are required or because the

information required is shown in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto

Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures
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Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rule 13a 15e and 15d-15e under the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the Exchange Act that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the

Companys reports
under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and

reported
within the time

periods specified in the

SECs rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to management including the Companys Chief

Executive Officer CEOand Chief Financial Officer CFO as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure

In connection with the preparation of this Annual Report on Form 10 as of March 31 2011 an evaluation was performed under

the supervision and with the participation of the Companys management including the CEO and CFO of the effectiveness of the

Companys disclosure controls and procedures Based on the evaluation the Companys CEO and CFO concluded that the Companys
disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of March 31 2011 to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the

Company in the
reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and reported within the time

periods specified in the SECs rules and forms and is accumulated and communicated to the Companys management including the CEO
and CFO or persons performing similar functions as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The management of the Company is responsible for establlshing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting

Internal control over financial reporting is defined in Rules 3a-1 51 and Sd 151 promulgated under the Exchange Act as process

designed by or under the supervision of the Companys ptincipal executive and
principal

financial officers and effected by the

Companys Board of Directors management and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

and includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company ii provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as

necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and

expenditures
of the Company are being made only in accordance with authotizations of management and directors of the Company and

iii provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthotized acquisition use or disposition of the

Companys assets that could have matetial effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also

projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of

changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate

The Companys management assessed the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial
reporting as of March 31

2011 In making its assessment the Companys management used the critena set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of

the Treadway Commission in Internal Control-Integrated Framework Based on the results of this assessment management including the

CEO and CFO has concluded that the Companys internal control over financial reporting was effective as of the end of its fiscal year

ended March 31 2011

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP our independent registered public accounting firm has issued an attestation
report on the Companys

internal control over financial reporting as of March 31 2011 as stated in their report which appears in this Form 10

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during our most recentiy completed fiscal

quarter
that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting

Item 9B Other Information

None
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PART III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Information required by this item with respecr to our directors the committees of the Board of Directors corporate governance and

compliance by our directors executive officers and certain beneficial owners of our common stock with Section 16a of the Exchange

Act is provided by incorporation by reference to information under the captions entitied Proposal Election of Directors Board of

Directors Governance Board of Directors Meetings Held and Committees and Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting

Compliance in the Companys definitive proxy statement for the 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders the Proxy Statement and

perhaps elsewhere therein Information required by this item relating to our executive officers also appears in Item of Part of this

Form 10-IC under the caption Executive Officers of the Registrant

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

As discussed above in Company Information and Websitein Item of Part of this Annual Report on Form 10 our Code of

Business Conduct and Ethics and the Code of Business Conducr and Ethic Supplement Applicable to the Chief Executive Officer Chief

Financial Officer Controllers and Financial Managers have been posted on our website We will
post on our website any amendments to

or waivers from provision of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics or the Supplement Applicable to the Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer Controllers and Financial Managers that applies to our ptincipal executive officer principal
financial officer

ptincipal accounting officer or controller or persons performing similar functions and that relates to any
of the following honest and

ethical conduct mcluding the ethical handling of actual or apparent
conflicts of interest between personal and professional relationships

ii full fair accurate timely and understandable disclosure in reports and documents that we file with or submit to the SEC and in

other public communications made by us iii compliance with applicable governmental laws rules and regulations iv the prompt

internal reporting of violations of the code to an approptiate person or persons identified in the code or accountability for adherence

ro the code

Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is provided by incorporation by reference to information under the captions entitled Director

Compensation Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation Compensation Committee and Equity Compensation

Committee Report Compensation Discussion and Analysis and Executive Compensation in the Proxy Statement and perhaps

elsewhere therein

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related

Stockholder Matters

The information required by this item is provided by incorporation by reference to information under the captions entitied

Ownership of Securities by Directors Director Nominees and Executive Officers Secutity Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners

and Equity Compensation Plan Information in the Proxy Statement and perhaps elsewhere therein

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by this item is provided by incorporation by reference to information under the caption Relationship with

Kyocera and Related Transactions and Board of Directors Governance in the Proxy Statement and perhaps elsewhere therein

Item 14 Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information
required by this item is provided by incorporation by reference to information under the caption entitied Report of

the Audit Committee Ptincipal Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Fees in the Proxy Statement and
perhaps elsewhere

therein

36



PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules See Index to Consolidated Financial

Statements at Item of this report

Exhibits

As indicated below certain of the exhibits to this
report are hereby incorporated by reference from other documents on

file with the Securities and Exchange Commission with which they are filed

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Registration Statement on Form SI

File No 33-94310 of the Company the Form 5-1

3.2 By laws of AVX Corporation as Amended and Restated March 30 2009 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the

Current Report on Form filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 31 2009

10.1 Amended AVX Corporation 1995 Stock Option Plan as amended through October 24 2000 incorporated by reference

to Exhibit 10.11 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of the Company for the quarter ended December 31 2000

10.2 Amended Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan as amended through February 2003 incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10 of the Company for the
quarter ended December 31

2002

10.3 Products Supply and Distribution Agreement by and between Kyocera Corporation and AVX Corporation incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Annual Report on Form 10 of the Company for the
year ended March 31 2000

10.4 AVX Nonqualified Supplemental Retirement Plan Amended and Restated effective January 2008 the AVX
Corporation SERP was merged into this plan effective January 2005 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the

Annual Report on FormlO of the Company for the
year

ended March 31 2009

10.5 Deferred Compensation Plan for Eligible Board Members incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q of the Company for the quarter ended December 31 2002

10.6 Employment Agreement between AVIX Corporation and John Gilbertson dated December 19 2008 incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10 of the Company for the
quarter

ended December 31

2008

10.7 AVIX Corporation 2004 Stock Option Plan as amended through July 23 2008 incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.11 to the Annual Report on Form 10 IC of the Company for the year ended March 31 2004

10.8 AVX Corporation 2004 Non Employee Directors Stock Option Plan as amended through July 28 2008 incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the
year

ended March 31 2004

10.9 Form of Notice of Grant of Stock Options and Option Agreement for awards pursuant to AVX Corporation 2004 Stock

Option Plan and AVX Corporation 2004 Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10 of the Company for the quarterly period ended June 30 2005

10.10 AVX Corporation Management Incentive Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q of the Company for the
quarter

ended June 30 2009

10.11 Machinery and Equipment Purchase Agreement by and between ICyocera Corporation and AVX Corporation

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the
year

ended

March 31 2005

10.12 Materials Supply Agreement by and between Kyocera Corporation and AVX Corporation incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.15 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended March 31 2005
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10.13 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as ofJune 15 2007 by and among AVX Corporation Admiral Byrd Acquisition

Sub Inc and American Technical Ceramics Corp incorporated by reference to Exhibit to the Schedule 13D filed by

the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 25 2007

10.14 Disclosure and Option to License Agreement effective as of April 2008 by and between Kyocera Corporation and

AVX Corporation incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form IC of the Company filed

with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 25 2008

10.15 Form of Relocation Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the Annual Report on Form 10-Ic of the

Company for the year ended March 31 2010

10.16 Form of Director and Officer Indemnification incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the Annual Report on

Form 10 IC of the Company for year ended March 31 2010
21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

24.1 Power of Attorney

31.1 Rule 13a-14a/15d 14a Certification of Chief Executive Officer John Gilbertson

31.2 Rule 3a 14a/I Sd 14a Certification of Chief Financial Officer Kurt Cummings

32.1 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

John Gilbertson and ICurt Cummings

Agreement relates to executive compensation
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the
registrant

has
duly caused this report

to he signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

AVX Corporation

by LLJurt Cummings
KURT CUMMINGS
Vice President Chief Financial Officer Treasurer and Secretary

Dated May 20 2011

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the following persons on

behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signature Title Date

Kazuo Inamori Chairman Emeritus of the Board May 20 2011

John Gllbertson Chairman of the Board Chief Executive Officer and President May 20 2011

Donald Christiansen Director May 20 2011

Kensuke Itoh Director May 20 2011

Makoto Kawamura Director May 20 2011

Rodney Lanthorne Director May 20 2011

Joseph Stach Director May 20 2011

David DeCenzo Director May 20 2011

Tetsuo Kuba Director May 20 2011

Tatsumi Maeda Director May 20 2011

by LsLiKurt Cummings
KURT CUMMINGS Attorney in-Fact for each of the persons indicated
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Assets

AVX Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets

in thousands except per
share data

March 31

2010 2011

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalen

Short term investments in securities

Availablefor- sale securities

Accounts receivable trade net

Accounts receivable affiliates

Inventories

Deferred income taxes

Prepaid and other

Total current assets

term inves tments in secur lire

Long term available forsale securities

415974

262709

9767

187958

8025

357105

34663

1316358

219993

5339

379350

398914

2747

227642

6141

496495

39355

51471

1602115

220835

4490

Property and equipment

Land 28990 29241

Building and kiwoym ots 310226 31358

Mclt1 q93p0eit 1091052 1105983
Construction in

progress 19404 13897

1449672 1462702
Accumulated depreciation 1202643 1227043

247029 235659
Goodwill 162401 162532

Intangible assets net 87011 82612
Deferred income taxes non-current 5167 1651

Other assets 8194 9588

Toral Assets 2051492 2319482

Liabilities and Stockholders Equity

Current liabilities

Accoun tspayable trade 371 4255
Accounts payable affiliates 67270 86378

ome tax espayable Q452
Accru ed payroll and benefits 42110 422
Accrued expenses 43210 49359

Total current liabilities 193273 235665

Pensions 32015 18028
Other liabilities 25197 26372

Total non currenr liabilities 57212 44400
Total Liabilities 250485 280065

Commitments and contingencies Note 11
Stockholders Equiry

Preferred stock par value $.01 per share

Authorized 20000 shares None issued and outstanding

Common stock par value $.01 per share

Authorized 300000 shares issued 176368 shares outstanding 170074 1764 1764

4Z9 ll1 f90 and respectively

1iioia1 p4 capsral

tain ed
earning 517818

Accum ulated oth er comprehensive incom 17257 41174

Treasury stock at cost
81 137 80 692

6295 and 6227 shares for 2010 and 2011 respectively

Total Stockholders Equity 1801007 2039417

Total Liabilities and Stockholders Equity 2051492 2319482

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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AVX Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations

in thousands except per share data

Years Ended Match 31 2009 2010 2011

Net sales 1389613 1304966 1653176

Cost of sales 1158196 1027368 1195790

Vendor settlemen P9
Restructuring charges 15123 4397

ZO t7226

ll1ng gsi and 4m 127
çha ges ys

rge

Other operating income 4051 3519

operations 7Q684

Interest income 21112 7120 6569

p2 @.i

Other net 578 1336 2766

Income before income taxes 97139 176357 334259

Provision for income taxes 16293 33499 90256

Net income 80846 142858 244003

Income per share

Basic 0.47 0.84 1.44

Diluted 0.47 0.84 1.43

Dividends declared 0.160 0.165 0.190

Weighted average common shares outstanding

Basic 170616 170247 170.025

Diluted 170689 170274 170390

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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AVX Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity

in thousands except per share data

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

common Stock

Number

Of Shares Amount

171066 $1764

Treasury

Stock

71955

Additional

Paid-In

Capital

$342843

Accumulated

Other

Retained

Earnings

$1349349

Comprehensive

Income

$207350

Total

Balance March 31 2008 $1829351

Net income 80846 80846

Other comprehensive

incom net of incom 207286

Dividends of $0.15

per share .7.l
Stock based

1.8
Adoption of new

77
442

Tax benefit of stock

option 240

Treasury stock purchased 1124 11422 11422
Balance March 31 2009 170384 $1764 77552 $343275 $1402202 $64 $1669753

Net income 142858 142858

Other comprehensive

loss net of income taxes 17193 17193

Dividends of $0.16

per ki.e 721
Stock based

f2EPisP2PSPfinS 90
12

Tax benefit of stock

92.929

Treasury stock purchased 322 3736 3736

Balance March 31 2010 170074 1764 81137 $345305 1517818 17257 1801007

Net income 244003 244003

Other comprehensive

.21.7

Dividends of $0.19

per hare

Stock-based

compensanonexpen

13 6638 6006

Tax benefit of stock

Comprehensive

Income

228011

80846

126440

142858

17193

160051

244003

23917

267920

Treasury stock purchased 445 6193 6193
Balance March 31 2011 170142 1764 80692 $347664 1729507 41174 2039417
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AVX Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

in thousands

Years Ended March 31 2009 2010 2011

Operating Activities

Net income 80846 142858 244003

Adjustment to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities

Depredation and amortization 28 58173 47619

Stock based compensation 7d.8 AIP
Deferred incom etax es 9483 8419 8492

Jpn fo ale securitie a6
çain 49fpyflty plan qupm ent

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

4cf9ur1 receivable 48 F744
7448 14788

ts

payable and eued pe .12 25868

E9iPxespayable i1 221f 1.40 3220

L1 @.91P
Other liabilities 17643 8558 12880

Net cash provided by operating activities 64991 200454 152095

Investing Activities

es of property and ecuipm ent 72

of

availab ale securities f7d17 996 d7

fpytm

en secur ide @P24d ent ir44s 2990 42.4 77
Proceed from ppn 4qus 4q6 4P0 7..

çqfitmng ntconsiderationforaprior acquisition 47.7 p2
Other investing activities 202 870 120

Net cash used in investing activities 42320 278473 157354

g4ys

P4ed pd 77
Purcha se of

treasury
stock 11422 3734

xpspf ock 6006

ngm 240

Other financing activities 1732

Net cash used in financing activities 34969 29105 31985

Effect of exchange rate on cash 33857 389 620

JI1ecrease in cash and cash equivalents 4415 106735 36624
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 568864 522709 415974

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 522709 415974 379350

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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AVX Corporation and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

in thousands except pet share data

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cenerab

AVX Corporation is leading worldwide manufacturer and supplier of broad line of passive electronic components and

intetconnect products Our consolidated financial statements of AVX Corporation include all accounts and subsidiaries All significant

intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated

From January 1990 through August 15 1995 we were wholly owned by Kyocera Corporation Kyocera As of March 31 2011

Kyocera owned approximately 72% of our outstanding shares of common stock

Use
of Estimates

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the basis of generally accepted accounting principles
The preparation of these

fmancial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the

disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses

during the reported periods We base our estimates and judgments on histotical experience and on various other factors that are believed

to be reasonable under the circumstances the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets

and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources There can be no assurance that actual results will not differ from those

estimates On an ongoing basis we evaluate our accounting policies and disclosure practices

Cash Equivalents and Investments in Securities

We consider all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months 90 days or less to be cash equivalents

Our short term and long term investment securities are accounted for as held-to-maturity securities and are carried at amortized cost

We have the ability and intent to hold these investments until maturity All income generated from the held-to-maturity securities

investments are recorded as interest income

Available for sale securities are classified as either current or long term investments based on their underlying expected cash flows

and are recorded at fair market value Any unrealized holding gains and losses resulting from these secutities are reported net of tax as

separate component of shareholders equity until realized Realized gains and losses and declines in value judged to be other than

temporary if any are included in our results of operations

Inventories

We determine the cost of raw materials work in process and finished goods inventories by the first-in first our CFIF0 method

Inventory costs include material labor and manufacturing overhead Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market realizable

value and are valued at market value where there is evidence that the utility of goods will be less than cost and that such wrire down

should occur in the current period Accordingly at the end of each period we evaluate our inventory and adjust to net realizable value

We review and adjust the carrying value of our inventories based on historical usage customer forecasts received from rhe marketing and

sales personnel customer backlog certain date code restrictions technology changes demand increases and decreases market directional

shifts and obsolescence and
aging

Prop ertj
and Eqz4pment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost Machinery and equipment are generally depreciated on the double declining balance

method Buildings are depreciated on the straight line method The estimated useful lives used for computing depreciation are as

follows buildings and improvements 10 to 31.5
years

and machinery and equipment to 10
years Depreciation expense was

$61738 $53798 and $43220 for the fiscal
years

ended March 31 2009 2010 and 2011 respectively
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We review long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of any

such assets may not be recoverable If the sum of the undliscounted cash flows is less than the
carrying

value of the related assets we

recognize an impairment loss measured as the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value of the assets

The cost of maintenance and repairs is charged to expense as incurred Upon disposal or retirement the cost and accumulated

depreciation of assets are eliminated from the respective accounts Any gain or loss is reflected in our results of operations

Goodwill andAcquired Intangible Assets

We do not amortiae goodwill and indefmite-lived intangible assets but test these assets for impairment at least annually or whenever

conditions indicate that such impairment could exist The carrying value of goodwill and indefmite-lived intangible assets are evaluated in

relation to the
operating performance and estimated future discounted cash flows of the related

reporting
unit If the sum of the

discounted cash flows excluding interest is less than the
carrying value of the related assets we recognize an impairment loss measured

as the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value of the assets The estimate of cash flow is based upon among other

things certain assumptions about expected future
operating performance Our annual goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets

impairment analysis indicated that there was no related impairment for the fiscal years ended March 31 2009 2010 or 2011

We have determined that certain intangible assets have finite useful lives These assets are being amortized on straight-line
basis

over their estimated useful lives Amortization expense was $4460 4375 and $4399 for the fiscal years ended March 31 2009 2010 and

2011 respectively

Pension Assumptions

Pension benefit obligations and the related effects on operations are calculated using actuarial models Two critical assumptions

discount rate and expected rate of return on plan assets are important elements of plan expense and/or liability measurement We
evaluate these assumptions at least annually The discount rate enables us to state expected future cash flows at present value on the

measurement date To determine the discount rate we apply the expected cash flows from each individual pension plan to specific yield

curves at the plans measurement date and determine level equivalent yield unique to each plan lower discount rate increases the

present
value of benefit obligations and increases pension expense To determine the expected long term rate of return on pension plan

assets we consider the current and expected asset allocations as well as historical and expected returns on various categoties of plan

assets Other assumptions involve demographic factors such as retirement mortality and turnover These assumptions are evaluated at

least annually and are updated to reflect our experience Actual results in any given year will often differ from actuarial assumptions

because of economic and other factors In such cases the differences between actual results and actuarial assumptions are amortized

over future periods

Income Taxes

As
part

of the
process of preparing

the consolidated financial statements we are required to estimate tax assets and liabilities in each

of the jurisdictions in which we operate This
process

involves estimating the actual current tax exposure together with assessing

temporary differences resulting from different treatment of items for tax and accounting purposes These differences result in deferred

tax assets and liabilities that are included within the consolidated balance sheets We assess the likelihood that deferred tax assets will be

recoverable as result of future taxable income and to the extent management believes that
recovery

is not likely we establish valuation

allowance

We have recorded valuation allowances due to uncertainties related to our ability to realize some of our deferred tax assets primarily

consisting of certain net operating
losses carried forward before

they expire
The valuation allowance is based on estimates of future

taxable income over the periods that deferred tax assets will be recoverable

We also record provision for certain international federal and state tax contingencies based on the likelihood of obligation when

needed In the normal course of business we are subject to challenges from U.S and non-U.S tax authorities regarding the amount of

taxes due These challenges may result in adjustments of the timing or amount of taxable income or deductions or the allocation of

income among tax jurisdictions Further during the ordinary course of business other changing facts and circumstances may impact our

ability to utilize tax benefits as well as the estimated taxes to be paid in future periods We believe that any potential tax exposures have

been sufficientiy provided for in the consolidated financial statements In the event that actual results differ from these estimates we may
need to adjust tax accounts and related payments which could materially impact our financial condition and results of operations
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We account for uncettainty in income taxes recognized in our financial statements We recognize in our financial statements the

impact of tax position if that position would more likely than not be sustained on audit based on the technical merits of the position

Accruals for estimated interest and penalties are recorded as component of interest expense

We record deferred tax liabilities for temporary differences associated with deductions for foreign branch losses claimed by us in

our U.S income tax returns as these deductions are subject to recapture provisions in the U.S income tax code When the

recapture period expires for these deductions the tax benefit is recognized in the income tax provision

Foreign Currency Activity

Assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries where functional currencies are their local currencies are translated into U.S dollars at

the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date Operating accounts are translated at an average rate of exchange for the respective

accounting periods Translation adjustments result from the process of translating foreign currency financial statements into U.S dollars

and are reported separately as component of accumulated other comprehensive income Transaction gains and losses reflected in the

functional currencies are charged to income at the time of rhe transaction

As result of certain restructuring activities including the movement of certain manufacturing operations out of the United

Kingdom we reassessed the functional
currency designation of certain U.K subsidiaries and determined that change in functional

currency designation of certain U.K operations was appropriate This change in functional currency from the British Pound to the U.S

dollar was effective April 2009 The change resulted in the translation amounts recorded for these operations to the consolidated

accumulated other comprehensive income account through March 312009 to remain unchanged indefinitely and wifi otherwise not have

material impact on the consolidated financial position results of operations or cash flows

Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative instruments are reported on the consolidated balance sheets at their fair values The accounting for
changes

in fair value

depends upon the purpose of the derivative instrument and whether it is designated and qualifies for hedge accounting For instruments

designated as hedges unrealized gains or losses are reported in other comprehensive income and when realized are reported in our

results of operations Any contracts that do not qualify as hedges for accounting purposes are marked to market with the resulting gains

and losses recognized in other income or expense

We use financial instruments such as forward exchange contracts to hedge portion but not all of our firm commitments

denominated in foreign currencies The purpose of out foreign currency management is to minimize the effect of exchange rate changes

on actual cash flows from foreign currency denominated transactions See Note 12 for further discussion of derivative financial

instruments

Revenue Recognition and Accounts Receivable

All products are built to specification and tested by AVX for adherence to such specification before shipment to customers We ship

products to customers based upon firm orders Shipping and handling costs are included in cost of sales We recognize revenue when

the sales process is complete This occurs when products are shipped to the customer in accordance with the terms of an agreement of

sale there is fixed or determinable selling price tide and tisk of loss have been transferred and collectability is reasonably assured

Estimates used in
determining sales allowance programs described below are subject to the volatilities of the market place This includes

but is not limited to changes in economic conditions pricing changes product demand inventory levels in the supply chain the effects

of technological change and other variables that might result in changes to our estimates Accordingly there can be no assurance that

actual results will not differ from those estimates

Accounts Receivable

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of out customers to make required

payments The allowance is determined through an analysis of the aging of accounts receivable and assessments of risk that are based on

historical trends and an evaluation of the impact of current and projected economic conditions We evaluate the past-due status of trade

receivables based on contractual terms of sale If the financial condition of our customers were to deteriorate resulting in an impairment

of their ability to make payments additional allowances may be required
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Returns

Sales revenue and cost of sales reported in the statement of operations are reduced to reflect estimated returns We record an estimated

sales allowance for returns at the time of sale based on using historical trends current pricing and volume information other market specific

information and input from sales marketing and other key management The amount accrued reflects the return of value of the customers

inventory These procedures require the exercise of significant judgments We believe that these procedures enable us to make reliable

estimates of future returns Our actual results approximate our estimates When the product is returned and verified the customer is given

credit
against

their accounts receivable

Distribution Programs

portion of our sales are to independent electronic component distributor customers which are subject to various distributor sales

programs We
report provisions

for distributor allowances in connection with such sales programs as reduction in revenue and report

distributor aliowances in the balance sheet as reduction in accounts receivable For the distribution programs described below we do not track

the individual units that are recorded against specific products sold from distributor inventories which would aliow us to directly compare

revenue reduction for credits recorded during any period with credits ultimately awarded in
respect

of products sold during that period

Nevertheless we believe that we have an adequate basis to assess the reasonableness and reliability of our estimates for each program

Distributor Stock Rotation Program

Stock rotation is program whereby distributor customers are allowed to return for credit qualified inventory semi annually equal to

certain
percentage primarily limited to 5% of the previous six months net sales We record an estimated sales allowance for stock rotation at the

time of sale based on percentage of distributor sales using historical trends current pricing and volume information other market
specific

information and input from sales marketing and other key management These procedures require the exercise of significant judgments We
believe that these procedures enable us to make reliable estimates of future returns under the stock rotation program Our actual results

approximate our esth-nates When the product is returned and verified the distributor is given credit against their accounts receivable

Distributor Ship
from Stock and Debit Program

Ship from Stock and Debit ship and debit is program designed to assist distributor customers in meeting competitive prices in the

marketplace on sales to their end customers Ship and debit programs require request
from the distributor for

pricing adjustment for

specific part for sale to the distributors end customer from the distributors stock Ship and debit authorizations may cover current and future

distributor activity for specific part
for sale to their customer At the time we record sales to the distributors we provide an allowance for the

estimated future distributor activity related to such sales since it is probable that such sales to distributors will result in ship and debit activity

We record an estimated sales allowance based on sales during the period credits issued to distributors distributor inventory levels historical

trends market conditions pricing trends we see in our direct sales activity with original equipment manufacturers and other customers and

input from sales marketing and other key management These procedures require the exercise of significant judgments We believe that these

procedures enable us to make reliable estimates of future credits under the ship and debit program Our actual results approximate our

estimates At the time the distributor ships the
part

from stock the distributor debits us for the authorized pricing adjustment

Special Incentive Programs

We may offer
special

incentive discounts based on amount of product ordered or shipped At the time we record sales under these

agreements we provide an allowance for the discounts on the sales for which the customer is eligible to take The customer then debits us for

the authorized discount amount

Watrany

All of our products are built to specifications and tested by us for adherence to such specifications before shipment to customers We
warrant that our products will meet such specifications We accrue for product warranties when it is probable that customers will make claims

under warranties relating to products that have been sold and reasonable estimate of costs can be made The amount accrued represents the

direct costs of replacement and other potential costs resulting from product not meeting specifications above and beyond the return value of the

customers affected product purchases 1-listorically valid
warranty claims which are result of products not meeting specifications have been

immaterial to our results of operations However there is no guarantee that warranty claims in the future will not increase or be material to

results of operations as result of manufacturing defects end market product application failures or end user recall or damage claims
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Grants

We receive employment and research
grants

from various non U.S governmental agencies which are recognized in our results of

operations in the period in which the related expenditures are incurred Capital grants
for the acquisition of equipment are recorded as

reductions of the related equipment cost and reduce future depreciation expense The
grants are generally subject to cerrain conditions

and non-compliance with such conditions could result in repayment of grants

Research Development and Engineering

Research development and engineering expenditures are expensed when incurred Research and development expenses are included

in selling general and administrative
expenses

and are $11703 $6831 and $7392 for the fiscal
years ended March 31 20092010 and

2011 respectively Engineering expenses are included in cost of sales and selling general and administrative expenses as follows

Years Ended March 31

2009 2010 2011

Cost of sales 17283 17200 15774

Selling general and administrative expense 2491 636 517

Total engineering expense 19774 17836 16291

Stock-Based Compensation

We recognize compensation cost resulting from all share based payment transactions in the financial statements The amount of

compensation cost is measured based on the
grant

date fair value for the share based payment issued Our policy is to grant stock

options with an exercise price equal to our stock price on the date of
grant Compensation cost is recognized over the vesting petiod of

the award

We use the Black Scholes-Merton option-pricing model to determine the fair value of options at the
grant

date See Note 10 fos

assumptions used

Treasury Stock

Our Board of Directors has approved stock repurchase authotizations whereby up to 15000 shares of common stock could be

purchased from time to time at the discretion of management Accordingly 1124 shares were purchased during the fiscal year ended

March 31 2009 322 shares were purchased during the fiscal year ended March 31 2010 and 445 shares were purchased during the fiscal

year ended March 31 2011 We purchased 26 shares of common stock during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended March 31 2011

As of March 31 2011 we had in treasury 6227 common shares at cost of $80692 There are 7117 shares that may yet be purchased

under this program

Commitments and Contingencies

Liabilities for loss contingencies are recorded when it is probable that liability has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably

estimated

New Accounting Standards

In January 2010 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB updated the accounting guidance related to fair value

measurements disclosures The updated guidance requires separate disclosure of significant transfers out of Levels and fair value

measurements ii requires disclosure of Level fair value measurements activity on gross basis iii clatifies existing disaggregation

requirements and iv clarifies existing input and valuation technique disclosure requirements The updated guidance is effective for

interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15 2009 except for the Level fair value measurement disclosure

requirements which are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2010 We adopted the
aspects

of the guidance that are

currently effective as of April 2010 and will adopt the remaining guidance on April 2011 The adoption of the effective guidance had

no effect on our financial position results of operations or cash flows and the adoption of the remaining guidance is not expected to

have any effect on our financial position results of operations or cash flows
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Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per
share are computed by dividing net earnings by the weighted average

number of shares of common stock

outstanding
for the period Diluted earnings per

share are computed by dividing net earnings by the sum of the weighted average

number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period and the dilutive effect of potential common stock equivalents

during the period Stock options are the only common stock equivalents and are computed using the treasury stock method

The table below
represents

the basic and diluted weighted average
number of shares of common stock and potential common stock

equivalents outstanding
for the years ended March 31 2009 2010 and 2011

2009 2010 2011

Net Income 80846 142858 244003

Computation of Basic EPS

g4.4ysg k.gyP ii4.ri .2P1
aca .dl

Computation of Diluted EPS

4.4yglm .2p4g 2.6 7Q1
Effect of stock options 73 27 365

iin P11 70689 1ZQZ74 .72222P

Diluted Incom pe lm

Common stock equivalents not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because the impact would have been and dilutive were

7595 shares 6240 shares and 2601 shares for the fiscal years ended March 31 2009 2010 and 2011 respectively

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income includes the following components

Years Ended March 31

2009 2010 2011

uc.m f.Qi .2P
Other comprehensive income loss net of income taxes

Penstonliththw and Q.thexl .s.ayinz sjAan.iiabilityi.athustm et iz 46

EQr2n .cur tencv trantuo adinsun en @96686 6564 21993

rcizn.cjjzzncv

cash.w be.dze.s
31

Tinrealived ouin Insti nn 2vnhlqhle-fnr s1e securities 176 2530 409

126440 160051 267920Comirehensive income loss

The accumulated balance of comprehensive income is as follows

Years Ended March 31

2009 2010 2011

PenalQn.llabiihw.and.nther..s.a5dng nJanJiabiiiu..adiustrn en

.Eereign c.unency..ixgnsiauQ ciius.tm 11.2 47716 27.9

.Eqzezn cur rnucv.casli.flQw hedges bP.. @72
Unrealiaed aain losal on available-for-sale securities 2853 323 86

Balance at end of period
64 17257 41174
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Fair Value

Fair Value Hierarchy

The fair value framework requires the categorization of assets and liabilities into three levels based upon the assumptions inputs

used to value the assets or liabilities Level provides the most reliable measure of fair value whereas Level generally requires

significant management judgment The three levels are defined as follows

Level Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities

L.evel2 Observable inputs other than those included in Level For example quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in

active markets or quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in inactive markets

.Level3 Unobservable inputs reflecting managements own assumptions about the inputs used in pricing the asset or liability

Fair Value at active observable Unobservable

Based on

Quoted

prices in Other

March 31 markets inputs inputs

2010 Level Level Level

Available for-sale investment securities short-term 9767 9537 227

4Jfpyytmen rAt.s 16 L4

lld qualified deferred program ztoo

Foreign currency
derivatives2 917 917

Total 25424 9403 15670 351

Based on

Quoted

prices in Other

Fair Value at active observable Unobservable

March 31 markets inputs inputs

2010 Level Level Level

Liabilitiesm fair value

Obligation related to assets held in the non qualified deferred

2uali9gLalTl 94oo

Foreign currency
derivatives2 1836 1836

Total 11236 9400 1836
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Based on

Quoted

prices in Other

Fair Value at active observable Unobservable

March 31 markets inputs inputs

2011 Level Level Level

etsm ed jse.umn

Available-for sale investment securities short-term 2747 12 2305 430

2jppg

erm dO 797

ed deferred ompensation program

Foreign currency
derivative/21 1538 1538

Total 17505

Fair Value at

March 31

2011

8742 7626

Based on

1137

Quoted

prices in

active

markets

Level

Other

observable

inputs

Level

Unobservable

inputs

Level

eda iiunm
Obligation related to assets held in the non qualified deferred

3o
Foreign currency

derivativeJ2 1851 1851

Total 10581 8730 1851

The market value of the aaseta held in the trust for the non qualified deferred compenaarion program is included as an asset and liability of the trusts assets are

available to general creditors in the event of our insolvency

Foreign currency derivatives in the form of forward contracts are included in accrued expenses in the March 31 2010 and 2011 consolidated balance sheets

Unrealized gains and losses on derivatives classified as cash flow hedges are recorded in other comprehensive income Realized gains and losacs on derivatives classified

as cash flow hedges and gains and losses on derivatives not designated as hedges are recorded in other income expense

The following table presents additional information about Level assets measured at fair value on recurring basis for the fiscal

years ended March 31 2010 and March 31 2011

Available-for-sale marketable securities

Year Ended March 31

2010 2011

girmmgpfiqd 72 .5

.P qd a1n cygam Qo 4ll4d 1111

4Jn 9ny9a.e 76 @7.

.-..

en

Transfers in and/or out of Level net 2715 934

Balanceendofperiod 351 1137
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Valuation Techniques

The following describes valuation techniques used to appropriately value our available for sale securities and derivatives

Investment Securities

Assets valued using Level inpurs in the table above represent assers from our non-qualified deferred compensation program The

funds in the non qualified deferred compensation program are valued based on the number of shares in the funds using price per share

traded in an active market

Assets valued using Level inpurs in the table above represent portfolio including foreign bonds corporate bonds asset backed

obligations and mortgage backed securities Valuation inputs used include benchmark yields reported rrades broker and dealer quotes

issuer spreads two-sided markets benchmark securities bids offers and reference dara

Assets valued using Level inputs in the table above represent portfolio including corporate bonds asset backed obligations and

mortgage-backed securities Unobservable inputs for valuation are managements assessments based on third party pricing
vendor

using

valuation inputs described above for Level adjusted based on the best economic and industry information available in the

circumstances

Investments are considered to be impaired when decline in fair value is judged to be other-than-temporary If the cost of an

investment exceeds its fair value among other factors we evaluated general market conditions the duration and extenr to which the fair

value is less than cost and our intent and ability to hold the investment Once decline in fair value is determined to be other rhan

temporary an impairment charge is recorded and new cost basis in the investment is established

Derivatives

We primarily use forward contracts with maturities generally less than four months designated as cash flow hedges to protect against

the foreign currency exchange rate tisks inherent in forecasted transactions related to purchase commitmenrs and sales denominated in

various currencies We also use derivatives nor designated as hedging instruments to hedge foreign currency
balance sheet exposures

These derivatives are used to offset
currency changes in the fair value of the hedged assets and liabilities Fair values for all of our

derivative financial instruments are valued by adjusting the market
spot rate by forward points based on the date of the contract The

spot rates and forward points used are an average rate from an actively traded market At Match 31 2010 and 2011 all of our forward

contracts have been designated as Level measurements

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable at March 31 consisted of 2010 2011

Trade 207166 249622

Less

Allowances for doubtful accounts 563 686

Ship from stock and debit and stock rotation 11964 13340

Sales returns and discounts 6681 7954

Total allowances 19208

187958

21980

227642
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Charges related to allowances for doubtful accounts are charged to seffing general and administrative expenses Charges related to

sales returns and discounts and distributor sales programs are reported as deductions from revenue

Activity for the fiscal years ended March 31 2009 2010 2011

Allowances for doubtful accounts

gnng 4an 93
521

Application 11 @22 72
Translation and other 33 11

Ending Balance 947 563 686

Ship from stock and debit and stock rotation

a.1a 21 12

38459

Application @2229 2212
Translation and other 135
Ending Balance 12169 11964 13340

Sales returns and discounts

ginning Balan ce 223 6922 PM1
gq 11.6 7790

29 721
Translation and other 789
Ending Balance 6922 6681 7954

Inventories

Inventories at March 31 consisted of 2010 2011

p.rA proce 20
Raw materials and supplies 179185 283092

357105 496495

Financial Instruments and Investments in Securities

Our financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents securities

investments and trade accounts receivable We place our cash and cash equivalents with high credit quality institutions At times such

investments may be in excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance limit Concentrations of credit risk with
respect to

trade accounts receivable are limited due to the large number of entities comprising our customer base and their dispersion across many
different industries and countries As of March 31 2011 we believe that our credit risk exposure is not significant

At March 312010 and 2011 investments in debt securities and time deposits held byus were classified either as available-for-sale or

held-to maturity

Available-for sale investments are securities are classified as either current or long-term assets based on their underlying expected

cash flows and are being recorded at fair market value Any unrealized holding gains and losses resulting from these securities are

reported net of tax as separate component of shareholders equity until realized Realized gains and losses and declines in value judged

to be other than temporary if any are included in the results of operations and are determined by specific identification of securities

During the fiscal year ended March 31 2011 the Company has recorded no other than temporary impairment charges and net unrealized

gains of $409 to other comprehensive income related to these securities See Notes and for additional disclosures related to these

available-for sale securities
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Investments in held to matutity securities tecotded at amortized cost wete as follows at March 31

Unrealized Unrealized Estimated

Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

Short-term investments

4s 40000 .1
222709 7g9

ts

U.S government and agency securities 219993 131 468 219656

482702 378 493 482587

2011

Cross Gross

Unrealized Unrealized Estimated

Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

Short- term investments

J..g9y9L 2gcy 20000 22.
cEp9.k9Yd .9 c6
Tim c.4P9 21

21
U.S government and agency securities 199992 59 978 199073

619749 118 999 618868

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of held-to-maturity investments at March 31 2011 by contractual maturity ate

shown below Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities because issuers may have the right to call or prepay

obligations without call or prepayment penalties

Held-to-Maturity

Amortized Estimated

Fair Value

398973

219895

618868

For financial reporting purposes income before income taxes includes the following components

Years Ended March 31 2009 2010 2011

Domestic 48080 56826 123412

Foreign 49059

97.139

119531

176.357

211147

334.259

2010

Gross Gross

Cost

one
yea sJs 2Z21

Due after one year through five
years 220835

Total 619749

Income Taxes
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The provision for income taxes consisted of

Years Ended March 31 2009 2010 2011

Current

4flhLSS..tc 8254 QM7
Forein 7.522 11271 40819

25776 41 .918 92933

Deferred

cJ/.Szate 6837 21.211 112.12.

Forei2n 2646
9483
16.293

12792

8419
33.499

8.540

2677
90256

Deferred taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial

reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes Significant components of our deferred tax assets and liabilities are as

follows

March 31 2010 2011

Current Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

Sales and receivable allowances 8432 9122

llxi2tc.ry s.crv 8a850 2$.8

.ij\ccn ed expense and other Q5

Sub total 39791 105 43868 106

Less valuation allowances 5023 4.407

Total Current 34168 105 39.461 106

March 31 2010 2011

Non-current Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

Tax gxcLkQQk prllciaggni..am at pp 122 42.5.1 1.28 .4at4

itcxhaaQffQtign.kran hlo çs 4.189 W26
PggPon 12156

Othera net 6369 5965 7134 6597

Net operating loss and tax credit carry forwards 86132 84669

SMb tQtal 4J28 41fL 2i56 1uca7

Less valuation allowances 73906 77893
Total Non-current 50272 45.1 05 42.668 41 .017

Reconciliation between the U.S Federal statutory income tax rate and our effective rate for income tax is as follows

Years Ended March 31
2009 2010 2011

.UY 30/ 22Pf
Increasc decrcase in tax ratc resulting from

State income taxes net of federal benefit 1.3 0.9 0.8

@1
.cma gJn owance 92 PP

9yfiçe 90 0.0

ubjec ço @7 21 14
Other net 1.2 2.8 0.4
Effective tax rate 16.8% 19.0% 27.0%
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At March 31 2011 certain of our foreign subsidiaries in Brazil China France Germany Israel and Taiwan had tax net operating loss

carry forwards totaling approximately $246497 of which most had no expiration date There is greater likelihood of not realizing the

future tax benefits of these net operating losses and other deductible temporary differences in Brazil France China and Taiwan since

these losses and other deductible temporary differences must be used to offset future taxable income of those subsidiaries which cannot

be assured and are not available to offset taxable income of other subsidiaries located in those countries Accordingly we have recorded

valuation allowances related to the net deferred tax assets in these jutisdictions Valuation allowances decreased $4033 and increased

$3049 during the years ended March31 2010 and 2011 respectively as result of changes in the net operating losses of the subsidiaries

in the countries mentioned above

We have recorded deferred tax liabilities of $14789 and $10236 at March 31 2010 and 2011 respectively for temporary differences

associated with deductions for foreign branch losses claimed by us in our U.S income tax returns that are subject to U.S
recapture

regulations

The provision for income taxes in the current fiscal
year was favorably impacted by reduction of $3582 of deferred tax liabilities

resulting from certain of our foreign branch losses taken as deductions for U.S income tax purposes no longer being subject to the U.S

income tax recapture regulations In March 2007 the Internal Revenue Service enacted change in the tax regulations that reduced the

U.S income tax recapture period on such foreign branch losses from 15
years to years

We estimate further reduction in deferred tax

liabilities of $3201 and $625 over the next two fiscal years respectively as the recapture period related to foreign branch losses deducted

in certain prior years expires

At the present time we expect that cash and profits generated by foreign subsidiaries will continue to be reinvested indefinitely We

do not provide for U.S taxes on the undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries which are considered to be reinvested indefinitely The

amount of U.S taxes on such undistributed earnings as of March 31 2010 and 2011 would have been $126974 and $142616

respectively

Income taxes paid totaled $51169 $31181 and $81505 during the years ended March 31 2009 2010 and 2011 respectively

We do not expect that the balances with respect to our uncertain tax positions will significantly increase or decrease within the next

12 months For our more significant locations we are subject to income tax examinations for the years 2008 and forward in the United

States 2005 and forward in Singapore 2005 and forward in Hong Kong and 2005 and forward in the United Kingdom

reconciliation of the beginning and ending balance for liabilities associated with uncertain tax positions is as follows

f442PS f.iLF 9f22i

Reductions for tax positions of prior years 1781
Balance atMarch3l 2009 5101

ii9.i.2f22i9 74
Reductions for tax positions

of prior years 50
Balance at March 31 2010 12605

4554Pan 2ax
Reductions for tax positions

of prior years 2917
BalanceatMarch3l2011 12513

We recognize interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in interest expense As of March 31 2010 and 2011 we had

accrued interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions of $534 During the
year

ended March 31 2010 and 2011 we recognized

$103 and zero respectively in interest and penalties

The amount of unrecognized tax benefits recorded on our balance sheet that if recognized would affect the effective tax rate is

approximately $12605 and $12513 at March 31 2010 and 2011 respectively This amount excludes the accrual for estimated interest

and penalties discussed above

56



Employee Retirement Plans

Pension Plans

We sponsor various defined benefit pension plans covering certain employees Pension benefits provided to certain U.S employees

covered under collective bargaining agreements are based on flat benefit formula Effective December 31 1995 we froze benefit

accruals under our domestic non contributory defined benefit pension plan for significant portion of the employees covered under

collective bargaining agreements Our pension plans for certain international employees provides for benefits based on percentage of

final pay Our funding policy is to contribute amounts sufficient to meet minimum funding requirements as set forth in employee benefit

and tax laws

We recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of our defined benefit postretirement plans as an asset or liability in our

statement of financial position and recognize changes in that funded status in the year in which the changes occur through

comprehensive income The adjustment to our pension liability is due to the change in the funded status of our plans was to increase

recorded pension liabilities by $1696 during the fiscal
year

ended March 312010 and to decrease recorded pension liabilities by $13942

during the fiscal year ended March 31 2011

As of March 31 2009 we changed the measurement date for all
plans from December 31 to March 31 As result of the adoption

of the new guidance on April 2008 we recognized adjustments of $680 and $279 to beginning retained earnings and to other

comprehensive income respectively

The change in the benefit obligation and plan assets of the U.S and international defined benefit plans for 2010 and 2011 were

as follows

Years Ended March 31

U.S Plans International Plans

2010 2011 2010 2011

Change in benefit obligation

a.t beginning ç4yqa A25 31340 L.4
Service cost 383 451 463 502

Interest cost 1839 1744 5902 6635

c.Qilltipn .P 132

.Agndgjgi.ga1n 797

@.7
en

Foreign currency exchange rate changes 3671 7664

Benefit obligation at end of year 31340 32555 114315 121997

Change in plan assets

Eair xiM.QLpIfl.a gIginning qfy.ar 26872 222
Actual return on assets 6957 3274 19019 6811

qikicn L127 28 2P
.Tlan pcip.an .P 132

@AQ L7
Foreign currency exchange rate changes 2242 5226

Fair value of plan assets at end of year 26872 34657 86296 101350

Funded status 4468 2102 28019 20647
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The accumulated benefit obligation at March 31 2010 and 2011 was $144720 and $154272 respectively

At March 31 2011 the accumulated benefit obligation exceeds the fair value of the assets for all of the international defined

benefit plans The fair value of the assets of the U.S defined benefit plans exceeds the accumulated benefit obligation at March 31
2011

The Companys assumptions used in determining the pension assets and liabilities were as follows

March 31
2010 2011

Assumptions

Discount rates 5.05 5.75% 5.15 5.75%

The following table shows changes in accumulated comprehensive income excluding the effect of income taxes related to amounts

recognized in other comprehensive income during fiscal 2011 and amounts reclassified to the statement of operations as component of

net periodic pension cost during fiscal 2011

Years Ended March 31

International Plans

2010

Amounts that have not yet been recognized as components

comprehensive income at March 31 2011 are as follows

of net periodic pension cost as component of accumulated

Years Ended March 31

International Plans

2010 11 2011 21

24361 32951

Amounrs in the above table as of March 31 2010 are net of $3182 and $9474 tax benefit for the U.S Plans and for the

International Plans respectively

Amounts in the above table as of March 31 2011 are net of $2849 and $9226 tax benefit for the U.S Plans and for the

International Plans respectively

U.S Plans

2010 2011

et gain loss incur ed cm ii.c year d7 12.J
.4.iu4sgcJ p1 LQ

22 Pm2tP4r .f2E9sF 19 @.P

Exchange 464 2667

8485 7597 33835 32951

2011

U.S Plans

2010 11 2011 21

.Unrco.arizd actiatiaI.lo.ss 7P
Unarnortized prior service cost

17

5303 7597 24361 32951
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The March 31 2011 balance of unrecognized net actuarial losses expected to be amortized in fiscal 2012 is $340 for the U.S

Plans and $1587 for the International Plans respectively The March 31 2011 balance of unamortized prior service cost expected to

be amortized in fiscal 2011 is $10 for the U.S Plans

Net pension cost related to these pension plans
includes the following components

Yeats Ended Match 31

2009 2010 2011

Service cost 1263 876 937

Interest cost 8390 8119 8151

Expected retur non plan et
i.cifp P..

Recognized actuarial loss 971 2029 2051

Net periodic pension cost 2444 4904 3181

The Companys assumptions used in determining the net periodic pension expense were as follows

Match 31
2009 2010 2011

Assumptions

Discount rates 5.50-6.25% 5.20 7.25% 5.05 5.75%

PaPP

3.90/ 4OO/

2f.fF i2fl.Pkg 66O75OV 650 7.2Y c.P

The pension expense is calculated based upon number of actuarial assumptions established annually for each plan year detailed in

the table above including discount rate rate of increase in future compensation levels and expected long term rate of return on plan

assets To determine the discount rate we apply the expected cash flows from each individual pension plan to specific yield curves at the

plans measurement date and determine level equivalent yield that may be unique to each plan On that basis the
range

of discount rates

decreased 1.5% from March 31 2010 to March 31 2011

The fair value of pension assets at March 31 2010 and 2011 was determined using

Based on

Quoted

prices in Other

Fair Value at active observable Unobservable

March 31 markets inputs inputs

2010 Level Level Level

Assetsm 4..f4c.x an
U.S Defined Benefit Plan Assets

PLllA

.iiaisLD

eposit Accoun d94

International Defined Benefit Plan Assets

Cash 507 507

Pooled Separate Accounts 85789 85789

Total 113168 507 112661
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Based on

ssets measured at fair value on recurring basis

U.S Defined Benefit Plan Assets

Fair Value at

Quoted

prices in Other

active observable Unobservable

March 31 markets

2011 Level

inputs inputs

Level Level

Cash 128 128

cun .ld78

International Defined Benefit Plan Assets

Cash 478 478

Pooled Separate Accounts 100872 100872

Total 136007 606 135401

Assets valued using Level inputs in the table above are cash

Assets valued using Level inputs in the table above are investments held in pooled separate accounts and guaranteed deposit

account See discussion in the Valuation of Investments section below

Valuation of Investments

Our investments are held in Pooled Separate Accounts and Guaranteed Deposit Account Investments held in the Pooled Separate

Accounts are based on the fair value of the underlying securities within the fund which represent the net asset value practical expedient

to fair value of the units held by the pension plan at year-end Those assets held in the Guaranteed Deposit Account are valued at the

contract value of the account which approximates fair value The contract value represents contributions plus accumulated interest at the

contract rate less benefits paid to participants contract administration fees and other direct expenses

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets assumption is based upon actual historical returns and future expectations for

returns for each asset class These expected results were adjusted for payment of reasonable expenses from plan assets Our long term

strategy is for
target allocation of 40% equity and 60% fixed income for our U.S defined benefit plans and 60% equity and 40% fixed

income for our international defined benefit plans

The Companys pension plans weighted average asset allocations at March 31 2010 and 2011 by asset category are as follows

March 31 2010 March 31 2011

International International

Asset Category U.S Plans Plans U.S Plans Plans

.1MM1tY .l0/

Debt securities 42% 50% 39% 50%

Other 5% 0% 10% 0%
Total 100% 100% 100% l00%
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We make contributions to our defined benefit plans as required under various pension funding regulations Accordingly we

expect to make contributions of approximately $7832 to the international
plans

and none to the U.S plans in fiscal 2012 based on

current actuarial computations

Estimated future benefit payments are as follows

U.S International

Yeats ended March 31 Plans Plans

2012 1582 5027

2013 1649 5327

2014 1716 5650

2015 1858 5976

2016 1965 6336

2017-2021 11596 37936

Savings Plans

We sponsor retirement savings plans which allow eligible employees to defer part
of their annual compensation Certain

contributions by us are discretionary and are determined by our Board of Directors each year Our contributions to the savings plans in

the United States and Europe for the fiscal
years

ended March 31 2009 2010 and 2011 were approximately $6537 $5836 and $5507

respectively

In addition we sponsor nonqualified deferred compensation program which permits certain employees to annually elect to defer

portion of their compensation until retirement portion of the deferral is subject to matching conttibution by us The employees

select among various investment alternatives which are the same as available under the retirement savings plans with the investments

held in
separate trust The value of the

participants
balance fluctuates based on the performance of the investments The market value

of the tmst at March 31 2010 and 2011 of $9400 and $8730 respectively is included as an asset and liability in our accompanying

balance sheet because the trusts assets are available to our general creditors in the event of our insolvency

10 Stock Based Compensation

We have four fixed stock option plans Under the 1995 Stock Option Plan as amended we could
grant options to employees for the

purchase of up to an aggregate
of 9300 shares of common stock Under the Non Employee Directors Stock Option Plan as amended

we rnuld gr2nt nptinns
fnr the purchase of up to an aggregate

of 651 chares of common stock No awardc were made under these two

plans after August 12005 Under the 2004 Stock Option Plan as amended we may grant options to employees for the purchase of up

to an aggregate
of 10000 shares of common stock Under the 2004 Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan as amended we may

grant options for the purchase of up to an aggregate of 1000 shares of common stock Under all plans the exercise ptice of each option

shall not be less than the market price of our stock on the date of grant and an options maximum term is 10 years Options granted

under the 1995 Stock Option Plan and the 2004 Stock Option Plan vest as to 2S% annually and options granted under the Non
Employee Directors Stock Option Plan and the 2004 Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan vest as to one third annually

Requisite service petiods related to all plans begin on the
grant

date As of March 31 2011 there were 12428 shares of common stock

available for future issuance under all of the plans consisting of options
available to be

granted and options currently outstanding
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Activity under our stock option plans is summarized as follows

Aggregated

Number of Average Average Life Intrinsic

Shares Price years Value

Outstanding at March

575

Options exercised 5p 17.0

Options cancelled/forfeited 985 22.71

Outstanding at March 31 2011 3955 14.08 5.41 3283

Exercisable at March 31 2011 2660 14.72 4.01 501

Weighted average ezercise price

Weighted-average contractual life
remaining

The total aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised is $875 $23 and $1735 for fiscal years ended March 31 20092010 and 2011

respectively

Unvested share activity under our stock options plans for the year ended March 31 2011 is summarized as follows

Weighted

Average

Number of Grant-Date

Shares Fair Value

Unvested balance at March 31 2010 1255 2.65

.5.7.5 .59

72 .5.56

Options vested 506 25.88

Unvested balance at March 31 2011 1295 3.53

The total unrecognized compensation costs related to unvested awards ezpected to be recognized over the vesting petiod

approximately four years was $2270 and $1714 as of March 31 2010 and 2011 respectively The total aggregate fair value of options

vested is $4681 $2752 and $13111 for fiscal years ended March 31 2009 2010 and 2011 respectively

The weighted average estimated fair value of our stock options granted at grant date market prices was $3.48 $2.18 and $3.29 per

option duting fiscal years ended March 31 2009 2010 and 2011 respectively The consolidated statement of operations includes $2204

net of $271 of taz benefit in stock based compensation expense for fiscal 2011

Our weighted average fair value is estimated at the date of grant using Black Scholes Merton option pricing model We estimated

volatility by considering our hisrotical stock volatility We calculated the dividend yield based on historical dividends paid We have

estimated forfeitures in determining the weighted average fair value calculation The forfeiture rate used for the fiscal year ended March

31 2011 was 6.9% The following are significant weighted average assumptions used for estimating the fair value of options issued under

our stock option plans

2009 2010 2011

Grants Grants Grants

Expected

Interest rate 3.2% 2.4% 2.3%

Volatility 28% 27% 27%
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Options exercised under our stock option plans are issued from our treasury shares As of March 312011 we have 7117 shares that

may yet be purchased under repurchase programs authorized by the Board of Directors We purchased 322 shares at cost of $3736

during fiscal 2010 and 445 shares at cost of $6193 during
fiscal 2011 which are held as treasury

stock and available for
general corporate

purposes

11 Commitmentsand Contingencies

We are lessee under long-term operating leases primarily for office space plant and equipment Future minimum lease

commitments under non-cancelable operating leases as of March 31 2011 were as follows

Years ended March 31

2012 5674

2013 4385

2014 3149

2015 2772

2016 1352

Thereafter 1217

Rental expense for operating leases was $9341 $7412 and $6922 for the fiscal years ended March 31 2009 2010 and 2011

respectively

To resolve our liability at each of the sites at which we have been named PRP we have entered into vatious administrative orders

and consent decrees with federal and state regulatory agencies governing the timing and nature of investigation and remecliation We
have paid or reserved for all estimated amounts required under the terms of these orders and decrees corresponding to our apportioned

share of the liabilities As is customary the orders and decrees regarding sites where the PRPs are not themselves implementing the

chosen remedy contain provisions allowing the EPA to reopen the agreement and seek additional amounts from
settling

PRPs in the

event that certain
contingencies occur such as the discovery of

significant new information about site conditions duting clean up or

substantial cost overruns for the chosen remedy The existence of these reopener provisions combined with the difficulties of reliably

estimating
clean up costs and the joint and several nature of CERCLA liability makes it difficult to predict

the ultimate liability at any site

with certainty

We are involved in disputes warranty and
legal proceedings arising in the normal course of business While we cannot predict

the

outcome of these disputes and proceedings management believes based upon review with legal counsel that none of these proceedings

will have material impact on our financial position results of operations or cash flows However we cannot be certain of the eventual

outcome and any adverse results in these or other matters that may arise from time to time may harm our financial position results of

operations or cash flows

From time to time we enter into delivery contracts with selected suppliers for certain metals used in our production processes The

delivery contracts
represent

routine purchase orders for delivery within three months and payment is due upon receipt As of March 31

2011 we had no significant outstanding purchase commitments

We have been identified by the United States Environmental Protection Agency EPA state governmental agencies or other

private parties as potentially responsible party PRP under the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability

Act CERCLA or equivalent state or local laws for clean-up and response costs associated with sites at which remediation is required

Because CERCLA has been construed to authotize joint and several liability the EPA could seek to recover all clean up costs from any

one of the PRPs at site despite the involvement of other PRPs At certain sites financially responsible PRPs other than AVIX also are

or have been involved in site investigation and clean-up activities We believe that any liability resulting from these sites will be

apportioned between AVX and other PRPs
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InJuly 2007 we received oral notification from the EPA and in December 2007 written notification from the U.S Deparrmenr of

Justice indicating that rhc United States is preparing to exercise the
reopener provision under 1991 consent decree relating ro the

environmental conditions at and remediation of New Bedford Harbor in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts In 1991 in connection

with that consent decree the Company paid $66000 plus interest toward the environmental conditions at and remediation of the

harbor in settlement with the EPA and the Commonwealth of Massachusetts subject to reopener provisions including reopener if

certain remediation costs for the sire exceed $130500 The EPA has indicated that remediation costs through
October 22 2010 were

approximately $427700 not all of which is subject to the
reopener provisions In March 2011 the EPA issued the Fourth Explanation of

Significant Differences EDS that explains the planned changes to the
existing

remedial action plan for the harbor to include the use

of confined aquatic disposal CAD cells along
with interim off site transportation and disposal of contaminated dredge spoils and the

continued use of on sire storage ESD provides
future cost estimates under the new remedial action plan in addition to costs incurred

to date ranging from $362 million to $401 million net present value based on certain assumptions

We have not received complete documentation of
past response costs from EPA and therefore have not yet completed an

investigation of the monies
spent or available defenses in light of these notifications and indications We have also not yet determined

whether the Company can avoid responsibility for all or some portion of these
past

or future costs because the remediation method has

changed over time and costs can be appropriately allocated to parties other than the Company We anticipate further discussions with the

U.S Department ofJustice the EPA and the Commonwealth of Massachusetts regarding the remediation plan and to explore options

for resolution of the matter We are continuing to investigate the claim as well as potential defenses and other actions with respect to the

site In light of the foregoing the potentialimpactof this matter on our financial position results of operations and cash flows cannot be

determined at this time

On June 2006 we received Confirmation of Potential Liability Demand and Notice of Decision Not to Use Special Notice

Procedures dated May 31 2006 from the EPA with regard to $1600 subsequentiy reduced to $900 of past costs as well as future costs

for environmental remediation related to the purported release of hazardous substances at an abandoned facility referred to as the

Aerovox Facility the Facility located at 740 Bellevifie Avenue New Bedford Massachusetts Aerovox Corporation predecessor

of AVX sold this Facility to an unrelated third party in 1973 subsequent unrelated owner Aerovox Inc the last manufacturer to own

and operate in the Facility filed for bankruptcy in 2001 and abandoned the Facility We have had numerous meetings with the EPA the

Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection and the City of New Bedford regarding the potential environmental remediation

of the Facility and the assignment of responsibility among the patties An agreement between EPA the City of New Bedford and AVX
is now in place setting forth the nature of the remedy the allocation of financial responsibility and the schedule for remediation with

respect to federal law Agreements with the state regulatory authorities have yet to be concluded Based on our own estimate or

remediation costs we accrued $1 8200 in the quartet
ended March 31 2009 which amount less monies spent is included in the $24606

reserved as of March 31 2011 for potential CERCLA liability as disclosed below as an estimate of the potential liability related to

performance of certain environmental remediation actions at the Facility This accrual assumes the anticipated performance of certain

remedial actions by the other parties The accrual
represents

the estimate of our costs to remediate however until all parties agree and

remediation is complete we can not be certain there will be no additional costs

During fiscal 2011 AVX was named as third party defendant in case filed in Massachusetts Superior Court captioned DaRosa

Ciy of New Bedford as wells as parallel case brought by the City of New Bedford containing substantially the same allegations These

cases relate to former disposal site in the City of New Bedford located at Parker Street The City asserts that AVX inter alia

contributed to that site We intend to defend vigorously the claims that have been asserted in this lawsuit At this stage
of the litigation

there has not been determination as to responsible parties or the amount if any of damages Accordingly the potential impact of the

case on our financial position results of operations and cash flows cannot be determined at this time

In September 2007 we received notice from Hotry Land Company the owner of property adjacent to our South Carolina factory

that Horry Land Companys property value had been negatively impacted by alleged migration of certain pollutants from our property

and demanding $5400 in compensatoty damages exclusive of unspecified costs This case has now been resolved Such resolution did

not have material impact on our results of operations or cash flows

In addition two other suits have been filed against us relating to the same contamination One suit was filed in the South Carolina

State Court on November 27 2007 by certain individuals seeking certification as class action which has not yet been determined The

other suit is commercial suit filed onJanuary 162008 in South Carolina State Court byJohn Nance andJDS Development of Myrtle

Beach Inc Both of these suits are pending in South Carolina state court We intend to defend vigorously the claims that have been

asserted in these two lawsuits At this
stage

of the litigation there has not been determination as to the amount if any of damages

Accordingly the potential impact of the lawsuits on our financial position results of operations and cash flows cannot be determined at

this time
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We have reserved approximately $24606 at March 31 2011 and $19879 at March 31 2010 related to these various environmental

matters discussed above During the quarter ended March 312011 we accrued $6.5 miffion based on our estimate of remediation costs

related to the property adjacent to our South Carolina factory Except for the matters discussed above while no assurance can be given

we do not believe that any additional costs to be incurred by AVX at any of the sites wifi have material adverse effect on its financial

condition results of operations or cash flows

We also operate on sites that may have potential future environmental issues as result of activities at sites during AVXs long history

of manufacturing operations or prior to the start of operations by AVX Even though we may have rights of indemnity for such

environmental matters at certain sites regulatory agencies in those jurisdictions may require us to address such issues Once it becomes

probable that we will incur costs in connection with remediation of site and such costs can be reasonably estimated we establish

reserves or adjust reserves for the projected share of these costs separate account receivable is recorded for any indemnified costs

We have an employment agreement with our Chief Executive Officer which provides
for salary continuance equivalent to his most

recent base salary as full-time employee during two year advisory period upon retirement from the Company

12 Derivative Financial Instruments

We are exposed to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations in the normal course of business We use derivative instruments

forward contracts to hedge certain foreign currency exposures as part
of the risk management strategy

The objective is to offset gains

and losses
resulting

from these exposures with
gains

and losses on the forward contracts used to hedge them thereby reducing volatility

of earnings or protecting fair values of assets and liabilities We do not enter into any trading or speculative positions with regard to

derivative instruments

We primarily use forward contracts with maturities less than four months designated as cash flow hedges to protect against the

foreign currency exchange rate risks inherent in our forecasted transactions related to purchase commitments and sales denominated in

various currencies These derivative instruments are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges

The effectiveness of the cash flow hedges is determined by comparing the cumulative change in the fair value of the hedge contract

with the cumulative change in the fair value of the hedged transaction both of which are based on forward rates The effective portion of

the gain or loss on these cash flow hedges is initially recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income as separate component of

stockholders equity Once the hedged transaction is recognized the gain or loss is recognized in our statement of operations At March

31 2009 2010 and 2011 respectively the Company had the foliowing forward contracts that were entered into to hedge against the

volatility of foreign currency exchange rates for certain forecasted sales and purchases

March 31 2009

Fair Value of Derivative Instruments

Asset Derivatives Liabi14yDerivatives

Balance

Sheet Fair

Caption Value

Balance

Sheet Fair

Caption Value

Foreign exchange contracts Prepaid and other 1355 Accrued expenses 2701
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March 31 2010

Fair Value of Derivative Instruments

Foreign exchange contracts Prepaid and other 856 Accrued
expenses

March 31 2011

Fair Value of Derivative Instruments

Asset Derivatives

Balance

Sheet Fair

Caption Value

Foreign exchange contracts Prepaid and other 876 Accrued expenses 1409

For these derivatives designated as hedging instruments during fiscal 2009 2010 and 2011 net pretax
loss of $9120 and net pretax

gains of $3555 and $6267 respectively were recognized in other comprehensive income In addition during fiscal 20092010 and 2011

net pretax gains of $13685 $3914 and $7740 respectively were reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income into cost of

sales for hedging purchases and net pre tax losses of $21102 $521 and $2034 respectively were reclassified from accumulated other

comprehensive income into sales for hedging sales in the accompanying Statement of Operations During fiscal 20092010 or 2011 we

discontinued an immaterial amount of cash flow hedges for which it was probable that forecasted transaction would not occur

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments consist primarily of forwards used to hedge foreign currency balance sheet

exposures representing hedging instruments used to offset foreign currency changes in the fair values of the underlying assets and

hahihties The gains and losses on these foreign currency forward contracts are recognized in other income and expense in the same

period as the remeasurement gain and loss of the related foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities and thus naturally offset these

gains and losses At March 31 2009 2010 and 2011 we had the following forward contracts that were entered into to hedge against these

exposures

March 31 2UU9

Asset Derivatives

Balance

Sheet Fair

Caption Value

Balance

Sheet Fair

Caption Value

Foreign exchange contracts Prep aid and other 518 Accrued
expenses 1232

Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives

Balance Balance

Sheet Fair Sheet Fair

Caption Value Caption Value

1795

Liability Derivatives

Balance

Sheet Fair

Caption Value

Fair Value of Derivative Instruments

Liability Derivatives
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Asset Derivatives

Balance

Sheet Fair

Caption Value

Liability Derivatives

Balance

Sheet Fair

Caption Value

Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives

Balance Balance

Sheet Fair Sheet Fair

Caption Value Caption Value

Foreign exchange contracts Prepaid and other 662 Accrued expenses 443

For these derivatives not designated as hedging instruments during fiscal 2009 2010 and 2011 loss of $72146 and gains of $408

and $2757 respectively were recognized in other expense which substantially offset the approximately $75000 in exchange gains and

$1100 and $4240 in exchange losses respectively that were recognized in other income in the accompanying Statement of Operations

At March 31 20092010 and 2011 we had outstanding foreign exchange contracts with notional amounts totaling 332351 $219687

and $274083 respectively denominated primarily in euros Czech korunas British pounds and Japanese yen

13 Transactions With Affiliate

Our business includes certain transactions with our parent company Kyocera that are governed by agreements between the parties

that define the sales terms including pricing for the products The nature and amounts of transactions with Kyocera are included in the

table below

Years Ended March 31

2009 2010 2011

Sales

1c.duct.an 220 2.ft5 SQ77

%1kcQi11gcPPg cis
Purchases

Purchases of resale inventories raw materials supplies

equipm en and serv ic 21 P279
Other

PiyAnchpgi4 1248 i.24.8 Z3j42

In
previous years Kyocera incurred additional taxes imposed by theJapan tax authorities related to earnings of some of its overseas

affiliates including AVX We assisted Kyocera in working with vatious international tax authorities to obtain relief from this effective

double taxation During fiscal 2011 we assisted Kyocera in arranging for approximately $6.0 million of tax refunds from country where

we operate We incurred no cost and received no benefit from the assistance we provided to Kyocera

March 31 2010

Fair Value of Derivative Instruments

Foreign exchange contracts Prepaid and other 61 Accrued expenses
41

March 31 2011

Fair Value of Derivative Instruments
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14 Segment and Geographic Information

Our operating segments are based on the types of products from which we generate revenues We are organized into product line

organization with five main product groups and three reportable segments Passive Components ICED Resale and Interconnect The

product groups of Ceramic Advanced and Tantalum have been aggregated into the Passive Component reportable segment in

accordance with the aggregation criteria and quantitative thresholds The aggregation critetia consist of similar economic charactetistics

products and services production processes customer classes and distribution channels The Passive Components segment consists

ptimarily of surface mount and leaded ceramic capacitors RE thick and thin film components tantalum capacitors film capacitors

ceramic and film power capacitors super capacitors EMI filters thick and thin film packages varistors thermistors inductors and

resistive products The ICED Resale segment consists primatily of ceramic capacitors frequency control devices SAW devices sensor

products RE modules actuators acoustic devices and connectors produced by lCyocera and resold by A\TX The Interconnect segment

consists primarily of Elco automotive telecom and memory connectors manufactured by AVX Sales and operating results from these

reportable segments are shown in the tables below In addition we have corporate administration group consisting of finance and

administrative activities and
separate

Research and Development group

We evaluate performance of our segments based upon sales and operating profit There are no intersegment revenues We allocate

the costs of shared resources between segments based on each segments usage
of the shared resources Cash accounts receivable

investments in securities and certain other assets which are centrally managed are not readily allocable to operating segments

The tables below
present

information about
reported segments for the years

ended March 31

Years Ended March 31
2010 2011Sales revenue in thousands 2009

.21 c2Efip9ngE .6 .P22.1

Advanced Components 434039 369811 410110

Total Passive Components 868105 805861 1041900

KDP and 11CC Resale 354258 338701 440050

KEC Resale Connectors 76209 73973 66088

Total ICED Resale 430467 412674 506138

Interconnect 91041 86431 105138

Total Revenue 1389613 1304966 1453176

2009 2010 2011

Operating profit

lYcSQm Pcont 11Q4.8 jjo 333901

ICED Resale 20242 26453 29010

Interconnect 3602 9167 19525

Research .dyprtwrit U17Q 3.1
Corporate administration 45825 33895 50120

Total 76.744 170.684 324.924

2009 2010 2011

Depreciation and amortizatiore

Passi om ponerits 54262 47774 4tQQ$

ICED Resale 809 453 433

Interconnect 5363 4397 3524

cach sk1ppmon 761 S.41

Corporate administration 4.681 4788 2113

Total 66.198 58.173 47.619
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Assets

Passive corn ponents $639993 525631 703602

ICED Resale 31299 38264 63706

Interconnect 48808 39.512 44.315

Research 4c.xci2pmciit 25
cb.A/R and S/T LIT çpt 125 U27L7 L239426

Goodw IiL11xc..cpm pcits A125 Lt.4 1Z55
Goodwill Connectors 10.277 10.277 10277

Corporate administration 75007 83771 100564

Total 1872529 2051492 2319482

2009 2010 2011

Capital expenditures

sixcQrnpgflci2ts 24 4V1
ICED Resale 408 98 64

Interconnect 4.011 1.669 1.783

ccch devopment 347 1176

Corporate administration 155 46 146

44205 28888 27470

No single custorner has accounted for rnore than lO% of net sales in the fiscal years ended March 31 2009 2010 or 2011

The following geographic data is based upon net sales generated by operations
located within that geographic area and long

lived assets based upon physical location
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Years Ended March 31

2010 2011

2009 2010 2011

Total

2009

Net sales

Americas 432549 403348 516243

ope .77 309486

Asia 617787 592132 731702

Total 1389613 1304966 1653176

Property plant and equipment net

Arnericas 126246 122312 107226

urope
Asia 36747 31793 30670

Total 263387 247029 235659



15 Summary of Quarterly Financial Information Unaudited

Quarterly financial information for the fiscal
years

ended March 31 2010 and 2011 is as follows

First Quarter Second Quarter

2010 2011 2010 2011

Net sales 292040 396537 310522 430639

99p.9f 54142 02652 64736122372
Net income 24280 52300 31642 67891

014 92 9ii

mg pe share 944 03 9J2 949.

Third Quarter Fourth Quarter

2010 2011 2010 2011

Net sales 334958 405862 367446 420138

9.222 704 727
Net income 40426 60552 46510 63260

92 9.7 927

re 9. 926 97

Results for the quarter ended March 31 2011 include environmental remediarion and legal costs of $8575 and $2236 one-time

income tax benefit attributable to an increase in available U.S foreign tax credits relating to one of our European operations

16 Subsequent Events

On May 19 2011 our Board of Directors declared $0055 dividend per share of common stock for the quarter ended March 31

2011 The dividend will be paid to stockholders of record on June 10 2011 and will be disbursed onJune 24 2011
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of AVIX Corporation

In our opinion the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of operations stockholders

equity
and cash flows present fairly in all material respects the financial position of AVX Corporation and its subsidiaries at March

31 2011 and March 31 2010 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three
years

in the period ended

March 31 2011 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America Also in our opinion

the Company maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial reporting as of March 31 2011 based on

criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

-5 Commission COSO The Companys management is
responsible for these financial statements for maintaining effective internal

control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9A Our responsibility is to express

opinions on these financial statements and on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated

audits We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all

material respects Our audits of the fmancial statements included examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management and

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation Our audit of internal control over financial
reporting

included
obtaining an

understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the tisk that material weakness exists and testing and

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk Our audits also included performing

such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our

opinions

companys internal control over financial reporting is
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability

of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted

accounin-ig ptinciples companys internal control over fmancial
reporting includes those

policies
and procedures that

pertain

to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of

the company ti provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial

statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being

made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and iii provide reasonable assurance

regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have

material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also

projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because

of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

4datJat4r- LL
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Atianta Georgia

May2O2011
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